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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTNOL3 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED: JUNE 30, 2009
OR

[1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SE{N 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 1-13447
CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Grart

MARYLAND 2€-0630461
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (IRS Employer Identification No

1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK
(Address of principal executive offices)

10036
(Zip Code)

(646) 454-3759
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area rode

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék) filed all documents and reports required toled by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exad®Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter periottti&Registrant was required to file such repp#s)l (2) has been subject to such filing requirgséor the past 90 days:
Yes NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant béasiitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T {8e@&32.405 of this chapter) during the precediggribnths (or for such shorter period that the tegyis was required to
submit and post such files).

YesOO NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantlé&s@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, nocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&se definition of “accelerated
filer,” “large accelerated filer,” and “smaller reqting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fill = Accelerated filed . Non-accelerated filed Smaller reporting compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgfe Act).
YesO NoHM
APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofakedracticable date:

Class Outstanding at August 7, 20!
Common Stock, $.01 par val 670,324,854
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PART 1.
ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

December 31

June 30, 200¢ 2008
(Unaudited) (1)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 13,121 $ 27,48(
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 1,746,54. 613,10¢
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali 1,889,55!( 242,36:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloae for loan losses of
$3.0 million and $1.6 million, respective 530,63¢ 583,34¢
Accrued interest receivab 27,05t 9,951
Other asset 79¢ 1,257
Total asset $ 4,207,70'  $ 1,477,50:
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreeme $ 1,377,14¢  $ -
Repurchase agreements with affilis 123,48 562,11¢
Securitized dek 442,78: 488,74
Payable for investments purcha: 270,73t -
Accrued interest payab 2,801 2,46t
Dividends payabl 37,70 7,04C
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 487 387
Investment management fees payable to affi 5,95¢ 2,292
Total liabilities $ 2,261,091 $ 1,063,041
Commitments and Contingencies (Note
Stockholders Equity:
Common stock: par value $.01 per share; 1,0000000shares authorized,
670,325,786 and 177,198,212 shares issuedwsatinding,
respectively $ 6,692 $ 1,76(C
Additional paic-in capital 2,290,30i 831,96¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (220,03() (266,66¢)
Accumulated defici (130,367 (152,607
Total stockholder equity $ 1,946,60! $ 414 45!
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 4,207,70'  $ 1,477,50:

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated statenoéfinancial condition at December 31, 20
See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)
(Unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended June 30,

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Net Interest income:
Interest incomt $ 65,077 $ 29,951 $ 93,08¢ 58,14¢
Interest expens 8,312 20,02¢ 17,35t 34,04
Net interest incom 56,764 9,92¢ 75,72¢ 24,09¢
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total other-than-temporary credit
impairment losse (8,57%) - (8,57%) -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in
other comprehensive incor 2,08( - 2,08( -
Net othe-than-temporary impairment
lossesincluded in income (6,49%) - (6,49%) -
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate
swaps - 25,58¢ - (5,909
Realized gains (losses) on sales of
investments, n¢ 9,321 1,64« 12,94¢ (31,179
Realized gains on terminations of
interest rate swaj - 123 - 123
Total other gains (losse 9,321 27,35 12,94¢ (36,960
Net investment income (expen: 59,59( 37,27 82,18 (12,862)
Other expenses
Management fe 5,95¢ 2,22¢ 8,53¢ 4,458
Provision for loan losse 1,13 (15) 1,362 1,164
General and administrative expen 861 1,167 1,76¢€ 2,55¢
Total other expense 7,94¢ 3,38( 11,66¢ 8,174
Income (loss) before income tax 51,64+« 33,89 70,51« (21,03¢)
Income tay - - 1 3
Net income (loss $ 51,64¢ $ 33,897 $ 70,51% (21,039
Net income (loss) per sha— basic and
diluted $ 0.1C $ 087 $ 0.21 (0.59)
Weighted average number of shares
outstandine basic and dilute 503,110,13 38,999,85 341,053,85 38,995,09
Comprehensive income (loss;
Net income (loss $ 51,64 $ 33,897 $ 70,51! (21,039
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-
for-sale securitie 39,50! (58,05)) 53,09 (146,309)
Reclassification adjustment for net losses
included in net income for other-than-
temporary impairmen 6,49t - 6,49t -
Reclassification adjustment for
realized (gains) losses included
in net income (9,327) (1,644) (12,949 31,174
Other comprehensive income (lo 36,67 (59,695) 46,63¢ (115,13
Comprehensive income (los $ 88,31¢ $ (25,799 $ 117,15: (136,179

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
Accumulated
Common Additional Other
Stock Par Paid-in Compre- Accumulated
Value Capital hensive Los: Deficit Total
Balance, December 31, 20C $ 1,76 $ 831,96t $ (266,668 $ (152,60) $ 414,45!
Net income - - - 70,51 70,51
Other comprehensive incor - - 46,63¢ - 46,63¢
Proceeds from common stock
offerings 4,931 1,458,13( - - 1,463,06.
Proceeds from restricted stock
grants 1 212 - - 213
Common dividends declared, $0.14
per shart - - - (48,277) (48,277
Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 6,69 $ 2,290,30i $ (220,030 $ (130,36) $ 1,946,60!

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

For the Six Months
Ended June 30,

2009 2008
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss 70,51 $ (21,039
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) toaaesh provided by operating
activities:
Accretion of investment discour (14,867) (939)
Unrealized (gain) loss on interest rate sw - 5,90¢
Realized (gain) loss on sale of investme (12,94%) 31,17«
Othe-thar-temporary credit impairmen 6,49t -
Provision for loan losse 1,362 1,164
Restricted stock gran 21z 1,03t
Changes in operating asse¢
(Increase) decrease in accrued interesiviaue (17,109 (5,52€)
Decrease (increase) in other as 45¢ (1,08%)
Changes in operating liabilitie
Increase in accounts payable and other iiggsi 2,68¢ 79¢
Increase in investment management fee payalatfiliate 1,08( 1,01z
Increase in accrued interest pay: 33€ 3,102
Net cash provided by operating activit 38,22¢ $ 15,618
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Mortgag-Backed securities portfolic
Purchase (3,202,74) % (1,228,57))
Sales 633,02° 248,01
Principal payment 130,07: 103,11
Loans held for investment portfoli
Purchase - (588,41)
Sales - 90,73:
Principal payment - 21,94
Securitized loans
Principal payment 50,75z 12,65¢
Reverse repurchase agreem: - 265,00(
Restricted cas - (28,157
Net cash used in investing activiti (2,388,89) $ (1,103,687
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from repurchase agreem 4445732 $ 18,613,322
Payments on repurchase agreem (43,518,81) (17,974,82)
Net proceeds from common stock offeril 1,463,06. (21€)
Proceeds from collateralized mortgage debt barrgs - 515,90¢
Payments on collateralized mortgage debt bormgs (47,659 (11,509
Dividends paic (17,606 (10,756
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 2,336,30i  $ 1,131,93.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. (14,359 $ 43,86:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 27,48( 6,02¢€
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe 13,121  $ 49,88¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest pai 17,02C $ 30,94+
Taxes pait - $ 45
Non cash investing activities
Payable for investments purcha: 270,73  $ 146,82«
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on ava—for-sale securitie 46,63¢ $ (115,139
Non cash financing activities:
Common dividends declared, not yet ¢ 37,70t $ 6,044

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (“Company”) was oiged in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Companymented operations on November 21, 2007 when it tategpits
initial public offering. The Company has electede taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REliiider the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asnale@. As long as the
Company qualifies as a REIT, the Company will galtginot be subject to U.S. federal or state coapetaxes on its income to the extent that the Gomglistributes at least
90% of its taxable net income to its stockholddrsJuly 2008, the Company formed Chimera Securitleldings, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary. In &2009, the Company
formed Chimera Asset Holding, LLC and Chimera HotgiLLC, both whollyewned subsidiaries. Chimera Securities HoldindsG LChimera Asset Holding, LLC and Chim:
Holding, LLC are qualified REIT subsidiaries. Amp&apital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns appnaétely 6.7% of the Company’s common shares. Thefg@oy is
managed by Fixed Income Discount Advisory Comp&dRJOAC”), an investment advisor registered with tBecurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). FIDA@
wholly-owned subsidiary of Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finant#éments have been prepared in conformity withrteuctions to Form 10-Q and Article 10, Rule@Dof Regulation S«
for interim financial statements. Accordingly, yh@ay not include all of the information and foate®required by accounting principles generallyegted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”). The consolidated interim fineial statements are unaudited; however, in theiopiaf the Company's management, all adjustmentssisting only of
normal recurring accruals, necessary for a faisgméation of the financial position, results of @gi®ns, and cash flows have been included. Theaedited consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunaotigh the audited consolidated financial statemémtiided in the Company's Annual Report on FornKifor the year ended
December 31, 2008. The nature of the Company'siessiis such that the results of any interim pesiednot necessarily indicative of results for ldyfear. The consolidated
interim financial statements include the accouffithe Company and its wholly-owned subsidiariesin@ha Securities Holdings, LLC, Chimera Asset HotgiLLC and
Chimera Holding, LLC. All intercompany balancesldaransactions have been eliminated.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hanthandy market funds with original maturities lesarti®0 days.

(c) Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Baekl Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in ohtigns backed by pools of mortgage loans. Statewfd-inancial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 11&¢counting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgB8ecurities (“SFAS 115"), requires the Company to classifyiitgestment
securities as either “trading”, “available-for-sdler “held-to-maturity.” The Company holds its RMBas available-for-sale, records investments ahated fair value as
described in Note 5 of these consolidated finarstetements, and unrealized gains and lossesd@duel@d in other comprehensive income in the codatéd statement of
operations and comprehensive income (loss). Fiom to time, as part of the overall managementsopaértfolio, the Company may sell any of its RMBS8estments and
recognize a realized gain or loss as a componegamiings in the consolidated statement of operatimd comprehensive income (loss) utilizing trecg identification
method.




Interest income on RMBS is computed on the remgipiincipal balance of the investment securityerfiums or discounts on investment securities tregaaranteed as to
principal and/or interest repayment as is with @ggEnof the U.S. Government or federally charter@gborations such as Ginnie Mae, Freddie Mac, anieaMae (“Agency
RMBS") are recognized over the life of the investinesing the effective interest method as describe&@FAS No. 91Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Assettia
with Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Déct Costs of Leaseg“SFAS 91”). Premiums or discounts amortization/accretion @m-Agency RMBS is recognized in
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EIT¥8) 99-20,Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment orcRased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Sézad
Financial Asset(“EITF 99-20") , as amended by Financial Accounting Standards BERAISB") Staff Position (“FSP”) EITF No. 99-20-Bmendments to the Impairment
Guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-REITF 99-20-1"). For non-Agency RMBS, the Compagstimates at the time of purchase expected futsb flows, prepayment speeds,
credit losses, loss severity, and loss timing basethe Company’s observation of available markea dits experience, and the collective judgmeritsahanagement team to
determine the effective interest rate on the RMB®B! less than quarterly, the Company reevaluates,if necessary, makes adjustments to its analyiidng internal models,
external market research and sources in conjunetitmit view on performance in the non-Agency RMB&:tor. Changes to the Company’s assumptiongqubst to the
purchase date may increase or decrease the antiortiaacretion of premiums and discounts which@#énterest income. Changes to assumptions twedse expected futt
cash flows may result in other-than-temporary impant.

Fair value of RMBS is determined in accordance BHAS No. 157Fair Value Measurementg“SFAS 157”),utilizing a pricing model that incorporates suchbtfas as coupo
prepayment speeds, weighted average life, collateraposition, borrower characteristics, expectedrest rates, life caps, periodic caps, resesdatdlateral seasoning,
expected losses, expected default severity, ceathitncement, and other pertinent factors. The @agnpalidates the fair value determined by theipgienodel with quotes
provided by independent dealers and/or pricingisesv Material differences between the fair valdetermined by the Company and third party souaceslisclosed in Note 5
of the consolidated financial statements.

If the fair value of an investment security is I&san its amortized cost at the date of the codat#d statement of financial condition, the Compamnglyzes the investment
security for other-than-temporary impairment in@dance FSP FAS No. 115-2 and FAS No. 1ZRe2ognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Tempprarpairments
(“FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2"), adopted by the Compapyil 1, 2009 and EITF 99-20-1. Management evaadhe Company’s RMBS for other-than-temporary iinmpant at
least on a quarterly basis, and more frequentlynwdenomic or market concerns warrant such evalnatConsideration is given to (1) the length ofdiand the extent to whi
the fair value has been lower than carrying valgethe intent of the Company to sell the investtrgior to recovery in fair value (3) whether ther@any will be more likely
than not required to sell the investment beforeetkgected recovery in fair value, (4) and the etgebfuture cash flows of the investment in relatioiits amortized

cost. Unrealized losses on assets that are coadid¢éher-than-temporary impairments are recognizéacome and the cost basis of the assets istsdju

(d) Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company's securitized residential mortgages@aa comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratesoaThe Company purchases pools of residentialgage loans through a
select group of originators. Mortgage loans asighated as held for investment, recorded on tlatks and are carried at their principal balandstanding, plus any premiui
or discounts, less allowances for loan losseserést income on loans held for investment is rezaghover the life of the investment using the efffe interest method as
described by SFAS 91 and EITF 99-20 and amendd&i By 99-20-1. Income recognition is suspendeddans when, in the opinion of management, a fubvery of income
and principal becomes doubtful. Income recognitooresumed when the loan becomes contractuallgeuand performance is demonstrated to be resuiflee.Company
estimates fair value of securitized loans as desdrin Note 5 of these consolidated financial statets.




(e) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lossek at a level that management believes is amielgased on an evaluation of known and inhereks rislated to the
Company's loan portfolio. The estimate is based wariety of factors including current economiaditions, industry loss experience, the loan oagpn's loss experience,
credit quality trends, loan portfolio compositiatelinquency trends, national and local economicdse national unemployment data, changes in houapreciation or
depreciation and whether specific geographic andese the Company has significant loan concentrataye experiencing adverse economic conditionegeadts such as
natural disasters that may affect the local econonproperty values. Upon purchase of the poolsars, the Company obtained written representatoswarranties from the
sellers that the Company could be reimbursed fwvtiue of the loan if the loan fails to meet tigee@d upon origination standards. While the Compeas little history of its
own to establish loan trends, delinquency trendd@friginators and the current market conditiaidsin determining the allowance for loan loss€se Company also
performed due diligence procedures on a sampleanfd that met its criteria during the purchasegssc The Company has created an unallocated mo¥@ possible loan
losses estimated as a percentage of the remairimgpgal on the loans. Management’s estimate getan historical experience of similarly undeneritpools.

When the Company determines it is probable thatiSpeontractually due amounts are uncollectilifes amount is considered impaired. Where impaitriseindicated, a
valuation write-off is measured based upon the €xoé the recorded investment over the net fainevaf the collateral, reduced by selling costsy Aaficiency between the
carrying amount of an asset and the net sales pfiEpossessed collateral is charged to the allow/éor loan losses.

(f) Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Company may invest its daily available caslameds via reverse repurchase agreements to pradditonal yield on its assets. These investmeritgypically be recordet
as short term investments, will mature daily, arelraferred to as reverse repurchase agreemetfits gonsolidated statement of financial conditi®everse repurchase
agreements are recorded at cost and are collaeddly RMBS.

(g9) Repurchase Agreements
The Company may finance the acquisition of its streent securities through the use of repurchaseaggnts. Repurchase agreements are treated dsredited financing
transactions and are carried at their contractoaluents, including accrued interest, as specifietthénrespective agreements.

(h) Securitized Debt

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarpetion of its residential mortgage loan portioliThe securitizations are collateralized by restil adjustable or fixed rate
mortgage loans or RMBS that have been placedrinsd &nd pay interest and principal payments taléi® holders of that securitization. The Comparsgcuritizations which
are accounted for as financings under SFAS No. Adéounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishment of Liabilit{eSFAS 140"), are recorded as
an asset called “Securitized loans held for invesitthon the consolidated statement of financialditton and the corresponding debt as “Securitizelot'tin the consolidated
statement of financial condition. The Companyreates fair value of securitized debt as describedate 5 to these consolidated financial statements

(i) Fair Value Disclosure

SFAS No. 107Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrume(tSFAS 107"), requires disclosure of the fair vabfeinancial instruments for which it is practidatio
estimate that value. A complete discussion oftie¢hodology utilized by the Company to fair valtsefinancial instruments is included in Note 5he tonsolidated financial
statements.

(j) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Adivity
The Company may hedge interest rate risk througlusie of derivative financial instruments suchnésrest rate swaps. If the Company hedges ustegesst rate swaps it
accounts for these instruments as free-standingalmes. Accordingly, they are carried at faitu@with realized and unrealized gains and lossesgnized in earnings.

7




The Company accounts for derivative financial mstents in accordance with SFAS No. 188counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities (“SFAS 133"), as
amended and interpreted. SFAS 133 requires aty éatiecognize all derivatives as either asset@bilities in the consolidated statement of fin&h condition and to measure
those instruments at fair value. Additionally, fag value adjustments affect either other compredive income in stockholders’ equity until the deedl item is recognized in
earnings or net income depending on whether thgatese instrument qualifies as a hedge for accimgnpurposes and, if so, the nature of the hedgotiyity.

(k) Credit Risk
The Company retains the risk of potential credisks on all of the non-Agency residential mortdagas it owns as well as the residential mortgagas which collateralize the
RMBS it owns. The Company attempts to mitigatertble of potential credit losses through its dilige in the asset selection process.

(I) Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionahich it sells financial assets, such as RMBSitgame loans and other assets. It may also seeuaihd re-securitize
financial assets. These transactions are recandectordance with SFAS 140 and are accountedsfeither a “sale” and the loans held for investnagatremoved from the
consolidated statements of financial condition®adfinancing” and are classified as “Securitizeghs held for investment” on the Company’s corsikd statements of
financial condition, depending upon the structuréhe securitization transaction. In these seiatibns and re-securitizations the Company sometiretains or acquires senior
or subordinated interests in the securitized aemuritized assets. Gains and losses on suchitsgtions or re-securitizations are recognizedgshe guidance in SFAS 140
which is based on a financial components apprdaathfdcuses on control. Under this approach, afteansfer of financial assets, an entity recagmthe financial and servicil
assets it controls and the liabilities it has imedr derecognizes financial assets when controbbas surrendered, and derecognizes liabilitiesweéinguished.

The Company determines the gain or loss on saieosfgage loans by allocating the carrying valuéhefunderlying mortgage loans between securitidsasrs sold and the
interests retained based on their fair valuestatied as disclosed in Note 5 to these financakstents. The gain or loss on sale is the differdretween the cash proceeds
from the sale and the amount allocated to the g&ior loans sold.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, aatkfbre it generally will not be subject to corperfederal or state income tax to the extent thatifying distributions are
made to stockholders and the REIT requirementfyditg certain asset, income, distribution and lstmenership tests are met. If the Company faitedualify as a REIT and
did not qualify for certain statutory relief proiwdss, the Company would be subject to federalestat local income taxes and may be precluded fneatifying as a REIT for
the subsequent four taxable years following the yreavhich the REIT qualification was lost.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109Accounting for Income Tax¢$SFAS 109”), which requires the recognition of eleed income taxes
for differences between the basis of assets ahdlifies for financial statement and income taxgnses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities reptebe future tax consequence
for those differences, which will either be taxabtedeductible when the assets and liabilitiesracevered or settled. Deferred taxes are alsgrezed for operating losses that
are available to offset future taxable income. \#hn allowances are established when necessaegltwe deferred tax assets to the amount expexteglrealized. In July 20C
the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. A8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxean interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“EI8!). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recogdim a company’s financial statements and pressribrecognition threshold and measurement atrfioutthe financial
statement recognition and measurement of a taxiposaken or expected to be taken in an incomeeaxn. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-reitimgn classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim pisjalisclosure and transition. FIN 48 was effecfir the Company upon inception and its effectiooes to not be material.




(n) Net Income (Loss) per Share

The Company calculates basic net income (loss$ipare by dividing net income (loss) for the petigdhe weighted-average shares of its common siatdtanding for that
period. Diluted net income (loss) per share taktsaccount the effect of dilutive instrumentsgisas stock options, but uses the average shaefprithe period in
determining the number of incremental shares tfeatabe added to the weighted average numberaséstoutstanding. The Company had no potentidliyive securities
outstanding during the periods presented.

(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaccordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128&ounting for Stock-Based Compensafit8FAS 123R"), which
establishes accounting and disclosure requiremesimg fair value based methods of accounting facksbased compensation plans. Compensation expelased to grants of
stock and stock options is recognized over theivggteriod of such grants based on the estimaieddiue on the grant date.

Stock compensation awards granted by the Compathetemployees of FIDAC are accounted for in acaoce with EITF No. 96-18\ccounting f or Equity Instruments That
Are Issued to Other Than Employees for AcquirimgndConjunction with Selling, Goods and Servi (“EITF 96-18"), which requires the Company to measthe fair value of
the equity instrument using the stock prices aheémoieasurement assumptions as of the earlietrafrahe date at which a performance commitmerthbycounterparty is
reached or the date at which the counterpartyf®meance is complete.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in eaonfty with GAAP requires management to make edmand assumptions that affect the reported amadm@tssets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets latallities at the date of the financial statenseaind the reported amounts of revenues and expduasag the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2008 FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 148e8punting for Transfers of Financial Assets angiRehase Financing Transactiong'SFAS 140-3"). SFAS 140-3
addresses whether transactions where assets pedcinam a particular counterparty and financeduftoa repurchase agreement with the same courtteqgzar be considered
and accounted for as separate transactions, oequéed to be considered “linked” transactions ar&y be considered derivatives under SFAS 133. SSF40-3 requires
purchases and subsequent financing through remeagreements be considered linked transactioessiall of the following conditions apply: (1) timitial purchase and the
use of repurchase agreements to finance the pwretnasot contractually contingent upon each ot2¢1the repurchase financing entered into betvieerparties provides

full recourse to the transferee and the repurchése is fixed; (3) the financial assets are riagibtainable in the market; and (4) the finanaiskrument and the repurchase
agreement are not coterminous. This FSP was eféefttr the Company as of January 1, 2009. The @om meets the requirements of this FSP to trgatrebase financings
non-linked transactions and this FSP has no effieéinancial reporting.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 18bpbsequent EvenfsSFAS 165"). SFAS 165 establishes general stalsdgoverning accounting for and disclosure of evémt
occur after the balance sheet date but beforanbadial statements are issued or are availathe iessued. SFAS 165 also provides guidance opetied after the balance sh
date during which management of a reporting estityuld evaluate events or transactions that mayrdoc potential recognition or disclosure in tleaicial statements, the
circumstances under which an entity should recageiznts or transactions occurring after the balaheet date in its financial statements and teatiures that an entity
should make about events or transactions occuafieg the balance sheet date. The Company adof&8 365 effective June 30, 2009, and adoption leithpact on the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements. Thea@any evaluated subsequent events through thg fiite of this Quarterly Report on Form @Qwhich is August 10, 200
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In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. #&ounting for Transfers of Financial AssétSFAS 166”), which amends the de-recognition goitiain SFAS 140. SFAS 166
eliminates the concept of a Qualified Special Psepéntity (“QSPE”) and eliminates the exceptiomfrapplying FASB Interpretation (“FIN") No. 46(Ronsolidation of
Variable Interest Entitie§'FIN 46R”) to QSPE’s. Additionally, this Statemteclarifies that the objective of paragraph 9 BAS 140 is to determine whether a transferor has
surrendered control over transferred financial sss@ hat determination must consider the trapsficontinuing involvement in the transferred ficgl asset, including all
arrangements or agreements made contemporaneoitis)yomin contemplation of, the transfer, evethiéy were not entered into at the time of the fiems This Statement
modifies the financiatomponents approach used in SFAS 140 and limitsitbemstances in which a financial asset, or partf a financial asset, should be derecognized
the transferor has not transferred the entire maiginancial asset to an entity that is not coiasted with the transferor in the financial statetsebeing presented and/or when
the transferor has continuing involvement with tfesferred financial asset. It defines the teparticipating interestto establish specific conditions for reporting ansfer of ¢
portion of a financial asset as a sale. Underdfsitement, when the transfer of financial assetaecounted for as a sale, the transferor musgreze and initially measure at
fair value all assets obtained and liabilities imed as a result of the transfer. This includesratained beneficial interest. The implementatthis standard materially affec
the securitization process in general, as it elatgn offbalance sheet transactions when an entity retaipinéerest in or control over assets transferrethis process. Howevt
the Company does not believe the implementatiahiefstandard will materially affect the Compangéporting as it has no offalance sheet transactions nor any unconsolit
QSPEs. This is effective for the Company on Jania010.

In conjunction with SFAS 166, the FASB issued SIS 167,Amendments to FIN 46RSFAS 167"). This statement requires an enteeptisperform an analysis to determine
whether the enterprise’s variable interest or Bgts give it a controlling financial interest inaiable interest entity (“VIE”). The analysis idies the primary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity as the enterprise thatiiwdls: a) the power to direct the activities thatstrsignificantly impact the entity’s economic perhance and b) the obligation to
absorb losses of the entity or the right to recéieefits from the entity which could potentially significant to the VIE. With the removal of t&SPE exemption, established
QSPE’s must be evaluated for consolidation undsrstatement. This statement requires enhancetbsises to provide users of financial statemeritis more transparent
information about and enterprises involvement WiR. The Company is not, currently, the primarynbgciary of any unconsolidated VIEs. Furtherstbiatement also requires
ongoing assessments of whether an enterprise withary beneficiary of a VIE. Should the Compdreat securitizations or re-securitizations asssatevill analyze the
transactions under the guidelines of SFAS 167 doisolidation. This is effective for the CompanyJamuary 1, 2010. Upon implementation and, asired|by the standard, on
an ongoing basis, the Company shall assess thealpifity of this standard to its holdings and retccordingly.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. T6& FASB Accounting Standards Codification and-tearchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prineg'SFAS 168”). This
is a replacement of SFAS No. 18he Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Biptes(“SFAS 162”). This Statement identifies the sosroéaccounting principles and
the framework for selecting the principles usethim preparation of financial statements of nongowemtal entities that are presented in conformitih @AAP in the United
States (the GAAP hierarchy). The objective of Biatement is to establish the FASB Accounting &ads Codification (“Codification”) as the sourdeanthoritative
accounting principles recognized by the FASB. Afte effective date of this Statement, all nonagfathered, non-SEC accounting literature not idetlin the Codification is
superseded and deemed non-authoritative. SFASelfes the framework for selecting the accoungirigciples to be used in the preparation of consaéd financial
statements that are presented in conformity wittABA In doing so, the Codification will require theferences within the Company’s consolidated fam@rstatements be
modified. Additionally, although it is not the FB% intent to alter any guidance, certain modificas in verbiage may, indeed, require the Compargvaluate whether such
modification would need to be accounted for asastbunting change” or as a “correction of an eriordccordance with SFAS No. 154¢counting Changes and Error
Corrections—a replacement of Accounting Princifdesrd (“APB”) Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement R¢'SFAS 154"). The Company shall assess the efiéttis
Standard which is effective for the Company'’s iimeand annual financial statements on Septembe2(BID.
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In October 2008, FASB issued FSP FAS 15D&ermining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset Wiiee Market for That Asset Is Not Act(VEAS 157-3"), in response to the
deterioration of the credit markets. This FSP tes guidance clarifying how SFAS 157, should bgliad when valuing securities in markets that aeattive. The guidance
provides an illustrative example that applies thgctives and framework of SFAS 157, utilizing maement’s internal cash flow and discount rate agsioms when relevant
observable data do not exist. It further clarifi@sv observable market information and market queteuld be considered when measuring fair valaaimactive market. It
reaffirms the notion of fair value as an exit praceof the measurement date and that fair valulgsieas a transactional process and should ndirbadly applied to a group of
assets. FAS 157-3 was effective upon issuancedirg prior periods for which financial statemehéve not been issued. The implementation of FAS38id not have a
material effect on the fair value of the Compargssets as the Company intends to continue the natigies used in previous quarters to value assetiefined under the
original SFAS 157.

In October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilirefiot of 2008 (the “EESA”) was signed into law. cBen 133 of the EESA mandated that the SEC conastady on
mark-to-market accounting standards. The SEC gealits study to the U.S. Congress on Decembe2@I8. Part of the recommendations within the sindicated that “fair
value requirements should be improved through asreént of application and best practices guidaacedtermining fair value in illiquid or inactivearkets”. As a result of
this study and the recommendations therein, onl Ap&009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 15Ddtermining Fair Value When the Volume and Leve\diivity for the Asset
or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Idiéyihg Transactions That Are Not Ordei§FAS 157-4"). FAS 157-4 provides additional guid@ on determining fair value
when the volume and level of activity for the agseliability have significantly decreased when gared with normal market activifpr the asset or liability (or similar assets
liabilities). FAS 157-4 gives specific factorsewaluate if there has been a decrease in normletnactivity and if so, provides a methodology talgze transactions or quoted
prices and make necessary adjustments to fair walaecordance with SFAS 157. The objective ida@termine the point within a range of fair valuéreates that is most
representative of fair value under current markeitditions. FAS 157-4 became effective for the Campon June 30, 2009. FAS 157-4 had no materighanon the fair
valuation of the investment securities owned byGobenpany.

Additionally, in conjunction with FAS 157-4, the I8 issued FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-Z'he objective of the new guidance is to make impairt guidance more operational
and to improve the presentation and disclosurel@rethan-temporary impairments (“OTTI8h debt and equity securities in financial statetsieihis, too, was as a result of
SEC mark-to-market study mandated under the EEB#e SEC’s recommendation was to “evaluate the femhodifications (or the elimination) of currenfT®I guidance to
provide for a more uniform system of impairmentiteg standards for financial instruments.” The rgwidance revises the OTTI evaluation methodoldgseviously the
analytical focus was on whether the entity had‘thtent and ability to retain its investment in thebt security for a period of time sufficient téoal for any anticipated recove
in fair value.” Now the focus is on whether thtiy has the ihtent to sell the debt security or, more likelpatimot, will be required to sell the debt secubijore its anticipate
recovery.” Further, the security is analyzed fiadit loss (the difference between the presentevaficash flows expected to be collected and therézed cost basis). If the
company does not intend to sell the debt securdy will be required to sell the debt security ptio its anticipated recovery, the credit lossrif/, will be recognized in the
statement of earnings, while the balance of impairmelated to other factors will be recognize®ther Comprehensive Income (“OCI”). If the compamiynds to sell the
security, or will be required to sell the secubigfore its anticipated recovery, the full OTTI vk recognized in the statement of earnings. FES2land FAS 124-2 became
effective for the Company on June 30, 2009. Theptdn of these rules did not result in a cumukagdfect adjustment to retained earnings in theogesf adoption but changed
the manner that the Company evaluates investmeatities for other-than-temporary impairments.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhetivities, an amendment of FASB Statement N®(“SFAS

161"). SFAS 161 attempts to improve the transpareri financial reporting by providing additionaiformation about how derivative and hedging adgsiaffect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance and clletvs. This statement changes the disclosure remeénts for derivative instruments and hedgingvaiets by requiring
enhanced disclosure about (1) how and why an emsigg derivative instruments, (2) how derivativ&ruments and related hedged items are accounteshdier SFAS 133 and
its related interpretations, and (3) how derivativdruments and related hedged items affect dtysnfinancial position, financial performance,choash flows. To meet these
objectives, SFAS 161 requires qualitative discleswbout objectives and strategies for using di&res quantitative disclosures about fair valueants of gains and losses on
derivative instruments, and disclosures about tmigk-related contingent features in derivativeemgnents. This disclosure framework is intendeetiter convey the purpose
of derivative use in terms of the risks that antgis intending to manage. SFAS 161 was effectind adopted by the Company on January 1, 2008 adoption of SFAS
161will increase footnote disclosure if the Compangages in hedging activities.

In January 2009, the FASB issued EITF 99-20-1 ieféort to provide a more consistent determinatiarwhether other-than-temporary impairment has weduor certain
beneficial interests in securitized financial assédther-than-temporary impairment has occurréidefe has been an adverse change in future estimash flows and its impact
reflected in current earnings. The determinatiamnot be overcome by management judgment of tHeapitity of collecting all cash flows previouslyqected. For debt
securities that are not within the scope of EITF2891, SFAS 115 continues to apply. The objeativether-than-temporary impairment analysis isatedmine whether it is
probable that the holder will realize some poridthe unrealized loss on an impaired securityctéia to consider when making other-than-tempoirapairment decision
include information about past events, current dwors, reasonable and supportable forecasts, réngapayment terms, financial condition of the Esexpected defaults, va
of underlying collateral, industry analysis, seatogdit rating, credit enhancement, and finanadadition of guarantor. The Company’s non-Agency B3/nvestments fall
under the guidance of this EITF and as such, thragamy assesses each security for other-than-tenyparpairments based on estimated future cash floWss EITF became
effective for the Company on December 31, 2008.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 andA-1,Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financiastrumentg"FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1). The FSP requires
disclosures about fair value of financial instruttsefior interim reporting periods as well as in aalrfinancial statements. The adoption of FAS 10#hd APB 28-1 increased
footnote disclosure. This FSP became effectivéHferCompany on June 30, 2009.

3. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The following table represents the Company’s abéeldor-sale RMBS portfolio as of June 30, 2009 &etember 31, 2008, at fair value.

June 30, 200 December 31, 200
Non-Agency Non-Agency
RMBS Agency RMBS RMBS Agency RMBS
(dollars in thousand:
Principal value $ 2,947,411 $ 1,827,57. $ 899,45¢ $ 233,97t
Unamortized premiur 2,25¢ 65,89( 2,10t 6,35(
Unamortized discour (987,01 - (19,759 -
Gross unrealized ga 34,56( 8,30¢ 5,66% 2,03¢
Gross unrealized loss (250,676 (12,219 (274,369 -
Fair value $ 1,746,54. $ 1,889,55( $ 613,100 $ 242,36:

During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Compamypleted sales of RMBS with a carrying value .8 million which resulted in a realized gain ppeoximately $9.3
million. During the quarter ended June 30, 2008CGbenpany had no sales of investments.
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The following table presents the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s BMBlength of time that such securities have heencontinuous
unrealized loss position at June 30, 2009 and Dbee3il, 2008.

Less than 12 Montt

Unrealized Loss Position Fc
12 Months or More

Total

Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency RMBS $ 671,55" $ (82,41) $ 483,19( $ (168,265 $ 1,154,74 $ (250,67¢)
Agency RMBS 1,103,841 (12,219 - - 1,103,84! (12,219
Total, June 30, 2009 $ 1,77539 $ (94,630 $ 483,19( $ (168,265 $ 2,258,58 $ (262,894
Non-Agency RMBS $ 595,11: $ (274,368 $ -8 - $ 595,11: $ (274,36
Agency RMBS - - - - -
Total, December 31, 2008 $ 595,11: $ (274,36 $ - 9 - $ 595,11: $ (274,36%)

The Company recorded a $6.5 million other-than-terafy impairment during the quarter on investmevtisre the expected future cash flows of certaimslibated non-
Agency RMBS were less than their amortized cosisbr@sjuiring credit impairment pursuant to EITF2®-1. The OTTI charge was attributed to eight sdipate securities
with an aggregate amortized cost prior to the impant of $10.2 million. Seven of the eight subneade securities belong to one non-Agency poolliaatrecorded no
delinquencies on the assets collateralizing thé fvom its inception. All securities for which OTimpairment was recorded during the period ard ¢lsving as expected.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesgeneerally shorter than stated contractual maasritiActual maturities of the Company’s RMBS affec&d by the contractual
lives of the underlying mortgages, periodic paymeitprincipal and prepayments of principal. Thiéofwing tables summarize the Company’s RMBS at J3®e2009 and
December 31, 2008 according to their estimated ltedyaverage life classifications:

June 30, 200
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS

Agency RMBS

Weighted Average Lifi

Less than one yei

Greater than one year and less than five y
Greater than five years

Total

Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos

$ 18,22¢ $ 16,871 $ - % =
1,037,97: 1,210,74. 1,761,73: 1,765,54.
690,34¢ 735,04! 127,81¢ 127,92.

$ 1,746,54. $ 1,962,65' $ 1,889,55( $ 1,893,46.

December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS

Agency RMBS

Weighted Average Lifi

Less than one yei

Greater than one year and less than five y
Greater than five years

Total

Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos

$ -8 -8 -8 -
525,80: 735,50¢ 242,36: 240,32t

87,30+ 146,30( - -

$ 613,10¢ $ 881,80¢ $ 242,36: $ 240,32¢

The weighted-average lives of the mortgage-backedrities at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 200&itables above are based on data provided thrdegler quotes,
assuming constant prepayment rates to the balloogset date for each security. The prepaymeneimzhsiders current yield, forward yield, steepnefsthe curve, current
mortgage rates, mortgage rates of the outstandary loan age, margin and volatility.
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The RMBS portfolio has the following characteristat June 30,

2009 and December 31, 2008.

June 30, 200 December 31, 20C
Non-Agency Agency Non-Agency Agency
RMBS RMBS RMBS RMBs
Weighted average cost ba 66.5¢ 103.6: 98.01 102.7:1
Weighted average fair valt 59.2¢ 103.3¢ 68.1¢€ 103.5¢
Weighted average coupt 5.84% 5.52% 5.97% 6.6%%
Fixec-rate % of portfolic 20.£% 34.5% 1.3% 13.7%
Adjustablerate % of portfolic 34. 1% - 51.2% -
Weighted average yield on assets at p~end 14.85% 4.3% 6.65% 6.0(%
Weighted average cost of funds at pe-end 1.7<% 0.4<% 1.64% 0.55%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end 16.(% 24.°% 12.5% 14.5%

The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to craiik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktigh its asset selection process. The investsenrities contained in
this portion of the portfolio have the followingltaderal characteristics at June 30, 2009 and Déeerd1, 2008.

December 31,

June 30, 200 2008
Number of securities in portfoli 87 30
Weighted average loan age in mor 29.7 22.1
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 73.8% 74.2%
Weighted average FIC 714.7 717.5
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa 439.2 394.:
Weighted average % owner occup 81.€% 77.€%
Weighted average % single family reside 61.2% 54.8%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 16.(% 25.4%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 56.4% CA 53.(%
FL 14.4% FL 10.€%
NY 6.2% AZ 8.2%
AZ 5.2% NV 5.6%
NJ 4.1% NJ 4.1%

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company's sézed residential mortgage loans classified as faléhvestment at June 30, 2009 and December(®18.2At June 30, 2009
approximately 56% of the Company’s securitized foare adjustable rate mortgage loans and 44%>ae fate mortgage loans. All of the adjustable taans held for
investment are hybrid ARMs. Hybrid ARMs are mogga that have interest rates that are fixed fanigial period (typically three, five, seven or tgears) and thereafter reset
at regular intervals subject to interest rate cafise loans held for investment are carried at thencipal balance outstanding less an allowancéoan losses:

December 31,

June 30, 200 2008
(dollars in thousand:
Securitized mortgage loans, at principal bale $ 533,62 $ 584,96°
Less: allowance for loan losses 2,98t 1,621
Securitized mortgage loans held for investment $ 530,63¢ $ 583,34t
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The following table summarizes the changes in tlsvance for loan losses for the securitized mag&gkban portfolio during the quarter ended June2B09 and the year ended
December 31, 2008:

December 31,

June 30, 200 2008
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,858 $ =
Provision for loan losse 1,13C 1,621
Charge-offs - -
Balance, end of period $ 2,98 % 1,621

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses. The Corgjgaallowance for loan losses for the quarter endletk 30, 2009 was $3.0
million, representing 57 basis points of the priratibalance of the Company’s securitized mortgaga portfolio. The Company’s allowance for loarskes was $1.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2008, representings8 points of the principal balance of the Compmagcuritized loan portfolio. At June 30, 200956 of the securitized
loans held for investment were greater than 60 dajisquent and 0.49% were in some stage of fosectn As of December 31, 2008, 0.12% of the sérzed loans held for
investment were greater than 60 days delinquentaridans were in foreclosure.

5. Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framkfi@mrmeasuring fair value, establishes a threellgaluation hierarchy for disclosure of fair valmeasurement and enhances
disclosure requirements for fair value measuremente valuation hierarchy is based upon the traresgy of inputs to the valuation of an assetatility as of the
measurement date. The three levels are definfallaws:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgqd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabidlities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwguoted prices for similar assets and liabiliteactive markets, and inputs that are observiallthe asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for subetially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology anehservable and significant to fair value.
The following discussion describes the methodolegidized by the Company to fair value its finaldnstruments by instrument class.

Short-term Instruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, attsopayable, and accrued interest payable genexafisoximates estimated
fair value due to the short term nature of thesarfcial instruments.

Nor-Agency and Agency RMBS

The Company determines the fair value of its inwestt securities utilizing a pricing model that inporates such factors as coupon, prepayment spgeigted average life,
collateral composition, borrower characteristiogexted interest rates, life caps, periodic cagsetrdates, collateral seasoning, expected losgescted default severity, credit
enhancement, and other pertinent factors. Manageraeiews the fair values generated by the mauldetermine whether prices are reflective of theent

market. Management performs a validation of thevialue calculated by the pricing model by comparits results to independent prices provided kalets in the securities
and/or third party pricing services.
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During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time, the observability of priaed inputs can be reduced for certain instrumelfitdealers or independent
pricing services are unable to provide a priceafoasset, or if the price provided by them is dekomeeliable by the Company, then the asset willdlaed at its fair value as
determined in good faith by the Company. In additivalidating third party pricing for the Compasyhvestments may be more subjective as fewercizatits may be willing
to provide this service to the Company. llliguéstments typically experience greater price Vidlaas a ready market does not exist. As faiueds not an entity specific
measure and is a market based approach which essdfte value of an asset or liability from thespective of a market participant, observabilitypdtes and inputs can vary
significantly from period to period. A conditioneh as this can cause instruments to be reclag$ifien Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 2 to Level 3 whihe Company is unable to
obtain third party pricing verification.

If at the valuation date, the fair value of an istveent security is less than its amortized coli@tiate of the consolidated statement of finaremabition, the Company analyzes
the investment security for other-than-temporargaimment in accordance FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2piadioby the Company April 1, 2009 and EITF 99-20Management
evaluates the Company’s RMBS for other-than-temydrapairment at least on a quarterly basis, andenfi@quently when economic or market concerns avarsuch
evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the tangf time and the extent to which the fair valaes bbeen lower than carrying value, (2) the inténhe Company to sell the
investment prior to recovery in fair value (3) wiet the Company will be more likely than not reqdito sell the investment before the expected ego¥4) and the expected
future cash flows of the investment in relatioritsoamortized cost. Unrealized losses on assatstie considered other-than-temporary impairmamsecognized in income
and the cost basis of the assets is adjusted.

At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Compasiglassified its RMBS as “Level 2”. The Comparijnancial assets and liabilities carried at featue on a recurring
basis are valued at June 30, 2009 as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Nor-Agency mortgac-backed securitie - % 1,746,54. -
Agency mortgac-backed securitie -8 1,889,55I

As of the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Compasyable to obtain third party pricing verificatifor all assets classified as Level 2. The clas#ibn of assets and liabilities
by level remains unchanged at June 30, 2009, wbetpared to the previous quarter. In the aggregfaeCompany'’s fair valuation of RMBS investmentye 0.05% lower
than the aggregated dealer marks.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company records securitized loans held fordtment when it securitizes or re-securitizes assadsrecords the transaction as a “financing” pamsto SFAS 140. The
Company carries securitized loans held for investraéprincipal value, plus premiums or discourgglpless an allowance for loan losses. The Comfrinvalues its
securitized loans held for investment by estimafirigre cash flows of the underlying assets. Then@any models each underlying asset by consideaimgng other items, the
structure of the underlying security, coupon, segxiactual and expected defaults, actual and egelefault severities, reset indices, and prepaysgeeds in conjunction with
market research for similar collateral performaand management’s expectations of general econamiditions in the sector and greater economy.
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Repurchase Agreemer

The Company records repurchase agreements attrgnmactual amounts including accrued interest pigyaRepurchase agreements are collateralizedding transactions
utilized by the Company to acquire investment siéesr Due to the short term nature of these famgrinstruments the Company estimated the fawealf these repurchase
agreements to be the contractual obligation plesugel interest payable at maturity.

Securitized Debt

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes sold in securitization or re-secutitizatransactions treated as “financings” pursuar8FAS 140. The Company
carries securitized debt at the principal balandstanding on non-retained notes associated veitbeituritized loans held for investment plus prensior discounts recorded
with the sale of the notes to third parties. Theniums or discounts associated with the saleehtites or certificates are amortized over thedifthe instrument. The
Company estimates the fair value of securitized tgtestimating the future cash flows associateti winderlying assets collateralizing the securdiat datstanding. The
Company models each underlying asset by consideaimgng other items, the structure of the undeglgecurity, coupon, servicer, actual and expecitdudts, actual and
expected default severities, reset indices, anpgyraent speeds in conjunction with market resetmckimilar collateral performance and managemesjgectations of general
economic conditions in the sector and greater eogno

The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value of the Company’s financiatinoments at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

June 30, 200 December 31, 200
Estimated Fair Estimated Fair
Carrying Amoun Value Carrying Amoun Value
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS $ 1,962,65 $ 1,746,54. $ 881,80¢ $ 613,10¢

Agency RMBS 1,893,46:. 1,889,55I 240,32t 242,36:
Securitized loans held for

investmen 530,63 489,37t 583,34t 577,89:

Repurchase agreemel 1,500,63: 1,530,63: 562,11¢ 562,11¢

Securitized dek 442,78: 463,13t 488,74 510,79¢

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtblsy management to ensure the changes are agteopgks markets and products develop and the pricincertain
products becomes more transparent the Companyncestio refine its valuation methodologies. Thehoés used may produce a fair value calculationrtiet not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflectivefofure fair values. Furthermore, while the Compéelieves its valuation methods are appropriatecamdistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodi@s, or assumptions, to determine the fair vafuzedain financial instruments could result iniiedent estimate of fair value
at the reporting date. The Company uses inputsatieacurrent as of the measurement date, whichincéyde periods of market dislocation, during whprice transparency m
be reduced.

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.5 billion and $563llion of repurchase agreements with weightedage borrowing rates of 0.59% and 1.43% and wetbaterage
remaining maturities of 17 and 2 days as of Jun@2809 and December 31, 2008, respectively. Ae B 2009 and December 31, 2008, RMBS pledgedl|edaral under
these repurchase agreements had an estimatealizér of $1.6 billion and $680.8 million, respectiveThe interest rates of these repurchase agnetsraee generally indexed
the one-month LIBOR rate and re-price accordingly.
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At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the repaecagreements collateralized by RMBS had thevilig remaining maturities:

December 31,

June 30, 200 2008
(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ - $ =
1 to 30 day: 1,427,48: 562,11¢
30 to 59 day: 73,14¢ -
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 days - -
Total $ 1,500,63. $ 562,11¢

At June 30, 2009, the Company did not have an atretuiisk greater than 10% of its equity with amycterparty. At December 31, 2008 the Companydmedmount at risk of
approximately 29% of its equity with Annaly, anildte.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company'’s securitized debt is collatezall by residential mortgage loans. For finanglorting purposes, the Company'’s securitized tedtcounted for as a
financing pursuant to SFAS 140. Thus, the residentortgage loans held as collateral are recondélde assets of the Company as securitized loelusfor investment and the
securitized debt is recorded as a liability in stetement of financial condition.

The following table presents the estimated prinadippayment schedule of the securitized debt hglthe Company outstanding at June 30, 2009 andrbleee31, 2008:

December 31,
June 30, 200 2008

Within One Yeal $ 40,34« $ 65,56!
One to Three Yeal 74,81¢ 112,74¢
Three to Five Year 38,33t 85,95¢
Greater Than or Equal to Five Years 309,63¢ 246,53!
Total $ 463,13t $ 510,79¢

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt arpeselent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their repayment is basestheduled principal
payments on the underlying loans. This estimatediffier from actual amounts to the extent prepagta@nd/or loan losses are experienced.

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the @nynpad no off balance sheet credit risk.

At June 30, 2009, the Company'’s securitized delatevalized by residential mortgage loans hadiacgpal balance of $442.8 million. The debt magubetween the years 2016
and 2038. At June 30, 2009, the debt carried ghted average cost of financing equal to 5.64%;,ithsecured by residential mortgage loans of whigproximately 44% of tt
remaining principal balance pays a fixed rate 888 and 56% of the remaining principal balance dysvariable rate of 5.64%. At December 3182@@curitized debt
collateralized by residential mortgage loans hadrecipal balance of $488.7 million. At Decembdr, 2008, the debt carried a weighted average ¢dstamcing equal to

5.55%, of which approximately 44% of the remaingrcipal balance is a fixed rate at 6.32% and 6% e remaining principal balance at a variabte f 5.65%.

8. Common Stock

On May 27, 2009, the Company announced the salé&000,000 shares of common stock at $3.22 pee $baestimated proceeds, less the underwritessodint and offering
expenses, of $519.3 million. Immediately followithg sale of these shares Annaly purchased 4,724ltdres at the same price per share as the pdfeling, for proceeds of
approximately $15.2 million. In addition, on June2009 the underwriters exercised the option telpase up to an additional 25,200,000 shares of anstock to cover over-
allotments for proceeds, less the underwriter<alisit, of approximately $77.9 million. These salese completed on June 2, 2009. In all, the Compaised net proceeds of
approximately $612.4 million in these offerings.
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On May 22, 2009, the Company filed an amendmeitstarticles of Incorporation. The Company’s Atés of Incorporation previously allowed the Compaémyssue up to a
total of 550,000,000 shares of capital stock, @dne $0.01 per share. As of May 22, 2009, the Gomnad 472,401,769 shares of common stock issudutstanding. To
retain the ability to issue additional shares gfited stock, the Company has increased the numigrases it is authorized to issue to 1,100,0004@G0es consisting of
1,000,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.01 paevar common share, and 100,000,000 shares efrpéfstock, $0.01 par value per preferred share.

On May 21, 2009, the Company declared dividenatomon shareholders totaling $37.7 million or $0@8 share, which were paid on July 31, 2009.

On April 15, 2009, the Company announced the sa®356,000,000 shares of common stock at $3.00 hmesfor estimated proceeds, less the underwritéssbunt and offerin
expenses, of $674.8 million. Immediately followithg sale of these shares Annaly purchased 24 8B5}¥ares at the same price per share as the péfielitng, for proceeds of
approximately $74.9 million. In addition, on Apti6, 2009 the underwriters exercised the optiorurclpase up to an additional 35,250,000 sharesroframn stock to cover
over-allotments for proceeds, less the underwtitissount, of approximately $101.3 million. Thesales were completed on April 21, 2009. In ak, @ompany raised net
proceeds of approximately $850.9 in these offerings

On October 24, 2008, the Company announced theo§at0,000,000 shares of common stock at $2.25Ip@me for estimated proceeds, less the undersirdimcount and
offering expenses, of $237.9 million. Immediatfifowing the sale of these shares, Annaly purctidse681,415 shares at the same price per shéhne asblic offering, for
proceeds of approximately $26.3 million. In adtfition October 28, 2008 the underwriters exerdisedption to purchase up to an additional 16,30®ghares of common
stock to cover over-allotments for proceeds, lbssuinderwriters’ discount, of approximately $35.flion. These sales were completed on Octobe2298. In all, the
Company'’s raised net proceeds of approximately $288llion.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstaresngf June 30, 2009 or December 31, 2008.
9. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentatoes and employees of FIDAC and its affiliatesstioulate their efforts
towards the Company's continued success, teng-growth and profitability and to attract, red@nd retain personnel and other service providéne incentive plan authoriz
the Compensation Committee of the board of diredtorgrant awards, including incentive stock opgiamneualified stock options, restricted shares andrayyges of incentive
awards. The specific award granted to each indalivas based upon, in part, the individual’s positvith FIDAC, the individual’s position with théompany, his or her
contribution to the Company’performance, market practices, as well as themmeendations of FIDAC. The incentive plan authesithe granting of options or other award:
an aggregate of the greater of 8.0% of the outstgrghares of the Company’s common stock up talmgef 53,626,063 shares. There have been ndiaddl incentive
awards granted since January 2, 2008.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrttak awards in the amount of 1,301,000 sharetD&E's employees and the Comparsyhdependent directors. The aw:
to the independent directors vested on the dageasft and the awards to FIDAC'’s employees vesttgtlgrover a period of 10 years. Of these sharesf June 30, 2009,
205,350 shares have vested and 20,075 sharesavisiefd or cancelled. During the three monthseendlune 30, 2009, 32,225 shares vested and 928sshare forfeited.
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As of June 30, 2009, there was $19.4 million cdltonrecognized compensation cost related to netedeshare-based compensation arrangements grardedthe long term
incentive plan. That cost is expected to be recmghover a weighted-average period of 8.5 years.tdtal fair value of shares vested during the ignanded June 30, 2009 was
$111,176.

10. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Federadiime tax on earnings distributed to its sharehsldad most states recognize REIT status as weitin® the quarter ended
June 30, 2009 and year ended December 31, 20@@catesely, the Company recorded no income tax espeelated to state and federal tax liabilitiesindistributed income.

In general, common stock cash dividends declarethidy¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttrkholders for income tax purposes. From timénte, a portion of
the Company'’s dividends may be characterized aisat@ains or return of capital. During the quagaded June 30, 2009 and the year ended Decerhp20@8, the Company
estimates that all income distributed in the forfndigidends will be characterized as ordinary ineom

11. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company's primary components of market riskcegdit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to credit risk in connection with itséstments in residential
mortgage loans and credit sensitive mortgage-baskedrities. When the Company assumes credititiakempts to minimize interest rate risk througiset selection, hedging
and matching the income earned on mortgage asgatthw cost of related liabilities. The Compasysubject to interest rate risk, primarily in coati@n with its investments in
fixed-rate and adjustable-rate mortgage-backedrgiesy residential mortgage loans, and borrowimgder repurchase agreements. The Company attémpisimize credit
risk through due diligence and asset selectiore Cbmpany's strategy is to purchase loans undéewiio agreed-upon specifications of selected maigirs in an effort to
mitigate credit risk. The Company has establishedole loan target market including prime borrasweith FICO scores generally greater than 650 AAdtecumentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propeatyd moderate loan to value ratio. These factigsonsidered to be important indicators of cresht

12. Management Agreement and Related Party Transéons

The Company has entered into a management agreviteitlDAC, which provides for an initial term thmgh December 31, 2010 with an automatic one-yeansion option
and subject to certain termination rights. The @any pays FIDAC a quarterly management fee equbl®% per annum of the gross Stockholders’ Edaitydefined in the
management agreement) of the Company. Manageeesngfcrued and subsequently paid to FIDAC fogtteeter ending June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $6lbménd $2.2
million, respectively.

On October 13, 2008, the Company and FIDAC ametigdedhanagement agreement to reduce the base maewtgem from 1.75% per annum to 1.50% per annutheof
Company'’s stockholders’ equity and provide thatitteentive fees may be in cash or shares of thegaogis common stock, at the election of the Comjzabgard of directors.

On October 19, 2008, the Company and FIDAC furireended the management agreement to provide thaidéntive fee be eliminated in its entirety andAC receive only
the management fee of 1.50% per annum of the Coy'gatockholders’ equity. From the Compasyriception to termination of the incentive fee€datober 2008, the Compa
had not paid incentive fees.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcitsts incurred under the management agreememtddition, the management agreement permits FIDA@duire the
Company to pay for its pro rata portion of rentepdione, utilities, office furniture, equipment, chinery and other office, internal and overheadeasgs of FIDAC incurred in
the operation of the Company. These expensedlacated between FIDAC and the Company based oretiite of the Company’s proportion of gross assetapared to all
remaining gross assets managed by FIDAC as cadclissiteach quarter end. FIDAC and the Companywatlify this allocation methodology, subject t@ tBompany’s board
of directors’ approval if the allocation becomesdnitable (i.e., if the Company becomes very hidgéleraged compared to FIDAC’s other funds and aets). FIDAC has
waived its right to request reimbursement from@enpany of these expenses until such time aserhes to rescind that waiver.
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During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, 32,22%shdrestricted stock issued by the Company toARIB employees vested, as discussed in Note 9.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a Secaritidustry and Financial Markets Association stadgaeprinted form Master Repurchase Agreement dthaly. This
standard agreement does not contain any sortuiflltg, net worth or other similar types of poséier negative covenants. Rather, the agreememdinsrcovenants that require
the buyer and seller of securities to deliver defial or securities, and similar covenants whigharstomary in the form Master Repurchase Agreemisiof June 30, 2009, the
Company was financing $123.5 million under thisesgnent. The Company has been in compliance wittoeénants of this agreement since it enteredthitoagreement.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become involmedarious claims and legal actions arising inah@inary course of business. Management is notewfany reported or
unreported contingencies at June 30, 2009.

14. Subsequent Events

On July 30, 2009, the Company transferred $1.%ohiln principal value of its RMBS to the JPMRT 20D Trust in a re-securitization transaction. His transaction, the
Company sold $166.3 million of AAA-rated fixed afidating rate bonds to third party investors aralized a gain on the sale of approximately $8.%ionl The Company
retained $690.6 million of AAA-rated bonds, $66&8lion in subordinated bonds and the owner trestificate which provide credit support to the AAAted bonds, and
intends to retain a substantial amount of thesel®amd the owner trust certificate. The bondseddwy the trust are collateralized by RMBS thatehbgen transferred to the
JPMRT 2009-7 Trust. The Company has no remainiteyésts or obligation with regard to the undedyRMBS transferred to the trust and as such, hasded in its
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition dhlyybonds and owner trust certificate it receiviettha close of the re-securitization. The Compiacyrred approximately
$4.0 million in issuance costs that were deducatechfthe proceeds of the transaction. The Compateyds to account for this transaction as a satsupnt to SFAS 140.

As of August 7, 2009, under the Master Repurchageément with Annaly, an affiliate, the Company viinancing $389.7 million. See Note 12 for a mdetailed discussion
of this agreement.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION:

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

We make forward-looking statements in this replogt fare subject to risks and uncertainties. Theseard-looking statements include information abpagsible or
assumed future results of our business, finanoiadlition, liquidity, results of operations, plansdabjectives. When we use the words “believégxpect,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” “intend,” * ‘should,” “may,” “would,” “will” or similar expressions, we intend to identify forwdobking statements. Statements regar
the following subjects, among others, are forwamking by their nature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our projected financial and operating results;

« our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements anddtras of such arrangements;
« general volatility of the securities markets in ahive invest;

« the implementation, timing and impact of, and clem®, various government programs, including t8eDépartment of the Treasusyplan to buy Agency residen
mortgag-backed securities, the Term As-Backed Securities Loan Facility and the Pi-Private Investment Prograt

« our expected investments;

« changes in the value of our investments;

« interest rate mismatches between our mortgage-das@urities and our borrowings used to fund sucbhases;
« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayragss; r

« effects of interest rate caps on our adjustablkewairtgage-backed securities;

« rates of default or decreased recovery rates omeastments;

« prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgage-backed or other asset-backed iesyr

« the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

« impact of and changes in governmental regulatitaaslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikters;

« availability of investment opportunities in reatae-related and other securities;

« availability of qualified personnel;
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« estimates relating to our ability to make distribos to our stockholders in the future;
« our understanding of our competition; and
« market trends in our industry, interest rates,d&let securities markets or the general economy.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsebssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account all information antly
available to us. You should not place undue rebamt these forward-looking statements. These Iseliessumptions and expectations can change aslaafesiany possible
events or factors, not all of which are known to$isme of these factors are described under theodfRisk Factors” in our most recent Annual Repon Form 10-K and any
subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. Ifamgk occurs, our business, financial conditiomiititfy and results of operations may vary mateyifdbm those expressed in
our forward-looking statements. Any forward-lookisigitement speaks only as of the date on whishnitade. New risks and uncertainties arise from tortéme, and it is
impossible for us to predict those events or hoay tmay affect us. Except as required by law, wenateobligated to, and do not intend to, updateewise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informafidgnre events or otherwise.
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Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company that investesidential mortgage-backed securities, or RMBSidemntial mortgage loans, real estate related gesuand
various other asset classes. We are externallpgeghby Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company,aluhive refer to as FIDAC. FIDAC is a fixed-incormyéstment
management company specializing in managing investsrin Agency RMBS, which are mortgage pass-thiaagtificates, collateralized mortgage obligatioosCMOs, and
other mortgage-backed securities representingésitiin or obligations backed by pools of mortgages issued or guaranteed by the Federal NatMoetgage Association, or
Fannie Mae, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corjporadr Freddie Mac, and the Government Nationattlyige Association, or Ginnie Mae.

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed REIT for federal income tax purposes commenwiitiy our taxable year ending on December 31, 20Dur
targeted asset classes and the principal invessmenexpect to make in each are as follows:

« RMBS, consisting of:
o Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc-investment grade classes, including the-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe
0 Agency RMBS
« Whole mortgage loans, consisting of:
o Prime mortgage loar
0 Jumbo prime mortgage loa
o Alt-A mortgage loan
« Asset Backed Securities, or ABS, consisting of:
o Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CME
o Debt and equity tranches of CDi
o Consumer and ni-consumer ABS, including investm-grade and nc-investment grade classes, including the-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe
We completed our initial public offering on Novernt24, 2007. In that offering and in a concurremtate offering we raised net proceeds of approxatya$533.6
million. We completed a second public offering aedond private offering on October 29, 2008.hkst offerings we raised net proceeds of approein&801.0

million. During the second quarter 2009, we cortgalea third public offering and third private offeg on April 21, 2009, and a fourth public offeringd fourth private offering
June 2, 2009. In these offerings we raised netgqeds of approximately $851.0 million and $612.4iom, respectively, and we have completed inveptirese proceeds.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubkteturns to our investors over the long-term, grity through dividends and secondarily throughitzdp
appreciation. We intend to achieve this objechiyenvesting in a broad class of financial assetsanstruct an investment portfolio that is destyt@achieve attractive risk-
adjusted returns and that is structured to comjitly the various federal income tax requirementsRBIT status and to maintain our exemption fromlthestment Company
Act of 1940, as amended, or the 1940 Act.
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Since we commenced operations in November 200Thawe focused our investment activities on acquinag-Agency RMBS and on purchasing residential
mortgage loans that have been originated by skightquality originators, including the retail ldng operations of leading commercial banks. Ouegtment portfolio is
weighted toward non-Agency RMBS. We expect thardlie near term our investment portfolio will done to be weighted toward RMBS, subject to maiitej our REIT
qualification and our 1940 Act exemption. In addif we have engaged in and depending on markelitiams, anticipate continuing to engage in tratisas with residential
mortgage lending operations of leading commeraakis and other high-quality originators in which identify and re-underwrite residential mortgagens owned by such
entities, and rather than purchasing and secuniftiguich residential mortgage loans ourselves, wdtanoriginator would structure the securitizatéon we would purchase the
resulting mezzanine and subordinate non-Agency RMB/® may also engage in similar transactions with-Agency RMBS in which we would acquire AAA-ratedn-
Agency RMBS and re-securitize those securities. vield sell some or all of the resulting AAA-ratB#BS and retain some of the AAA-rated RMBS and otwbordinate
bonds and interests.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest rateé aredit environment. We will adjust our strategychanging
market conditions by shifting our asset allocatiansoss these various asset classes as interesingcredit cycles change over time. We belibaedur strategy, combined
with FIDAC's experience, will enable us to pay dighds and achieve capital appreciation throughloani@ing market cycles. We expect to take a long-ieew of assets and
liabilities, and our reported earnings and markn@arket valuations at the end of a financial reparperiod will not significantly impact our objeegi of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the lemngy.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potestiains and to fund the acquisition of our assétsr income is generated primarily by the differerarenet spread,
between the income we earn on our assets and shefcour borrowings. We expect to finance ouestments using a variety of financing sources thalg repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizatioosymercial paper and term financing CDOs. We mayage our debt by utilizing interest rate hedgesh s interest rate
swaps, to reduce the effect of interest rate flatbtus related to our debt.

Recent Developmen

We commenced operations in November 2007 in thetoiichallenging market conditions which affectiee cost and availability of financing from the ifdies with
which we expected to finance our investments. &estruments included repurchase agreements, maseHacilities, securitizations, asset-backed ceroial paper,
(“ABCP"), and term CDOs. The liquidity crisis wiicommenced in August 2007 affected each of thesees—and their individual providers—to differeieigrees; some
sources generally became unavailable, some remairaldble but at a high cost, and some were lgngehffected. For example, in the repurchase ageeemarket, non-
Agency RMBS became harder to finance, dependinp@type of assets collateralizing the RMBS. Tim®ant, term and margin requirements associatedtivitbe types of
financings were also impacted. At that time, warede facilities to finance whole loan prime resittd@mmortgages were generally available from méajgnks, but at significantl
higher cost and had greater margin requirementspheviously offered. It was also extremely difflicto term finance whole loans through securit@abr bonds issued by a
CDO structure. Financing using ABCP froze as issbbecame unable to place (or roll) their secugiitrehich resulted, in some instances, in forceessaf mortgage-backed
securities, or MBS, and other securities whichHertnegatively impacted the market value of thesets.

Although the credit markets had been undergoingmturbulence, as we started ramping up our podfioliate 2007, we noted a slight easing. We extérto a
number of repurchase agreements we could useandnRMBS. In January 2008, we entered into twolevmortgage loan repurchase agreements. As wantiegsee the
availability of financing, we were also seeing betinderwriting standards used to originate newtgagres. We commenced buying and financing RMBSadsmlentered into
agreements to purchase whole mortgage loans. \Waamed high credit quality assets which we betleve would be readily able to finance.
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Beginning in mid-February 2008, credit markets eigeed a dramatic and sudden adverse changeseklesity of the limitation on liquidity was largely
unanticipated by the markets. Credit once agairef, and in the mortgage market, valuations ofAgancy RMBS and whole mortgage loans came undesrequressure. Th
credit crisis began in early February 2008, whéeavily leveraged investor announced that it hadktéever and liquidate a portfolio of approximst®B0 billion of non-
Agency RMBS. Prices of these types of securitreppled dramatically, and lenders started lowerliregprices on non-Agency RMBS that they held asatedél to secure the
loans they had extended. The subsequent failuaich 2008 of Bear Stearns & Co. worsened théscris the year progressed, deterioration in #ilevialue of our assets
continued, we received and met margin calls underepurchase agreements, which resulted in owiriby additional funding from third parties, inding from Annaly Capit:
Management, Inc., (“Annaly”), an affiliate, and itadf other steps to increase our liquidity.

The challenges of the first half of 2008 have awnid throughout 2008 and so far into 2009, as €imgndifficulties have severely pressured liquicityd asset
values. In September 2008, Lehman Brothers Hosdilrgs., a major investment bank, experienced anligjuidity crisis and failed. Securities tradirgmains limited and
mortgage securities financing markets remain chgiteg as the industry continues to report negataws. This dislocation in the non-Agency mortgagetor has made it
difficult for us to obtain short-term financing éewvorable terms. As a result, we have complatad kecuritizations in order to obtain long-termaficing and terminated our un-
utilized whole loan repurchase agreements in dalaroid paying non-usage fees under those agréembmaddition, we have continued to seek fundiogn Annaly. Under
these circumstances, we expect to take actionsdateto protect our liquidity, which may includelueing borrowings and disposing of assets as wealhsing capital.

During this period of market dislocation, fiscadamonetary policymakers have established new litfécilities for primary dealers and commercialnks, reduced
short-term interest rates, and passed legislalianis intended to address the challenges of mgetbarrowers and lenders. This legislation, theditamand Economic Recovery
Act of 2008, seeks to forestall home foreclosucegifstressed borrowers and assist communitiesfaititlosure problems.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, there were increaaddhtoncerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Mélisyato withstand future credit losses associatétth
securities held in their investment portfolios, amdwhich they provide guarantees, without theadiseipport of the federal government. In Septen26€8 Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac were placed into the conservatorshihb@federal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, tfegleral regulator, pursuant to its powers under Féderal Housing
Finance Regulatory Reform Act of 2008, a part effousing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008. Asdbnservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, theAebntrols and
directs the operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie &l may (1) take over the assets of and opeeatri€ Mae and Freddie Mac with all the powers efghareholders, the
directors, and the officers of Fannie Mae and Feetithc and conduct all business of Fannie Mae aeddte Mac; (2) collect all obligations and moneyedo Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functions of Fanniedvend Freddie Mac which are consistent with theseprator's appointment; (4) preserve and consdéwwassets and property
of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; and (5) contracasistance in fulfilling any function, activityctéon or duty of the conservator. A primary fo@fghis new legislation is to
increase the availability of mortgage financingdbpwing Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to continugrtaw their guarantee business without limit, whiiheiting net purchases
mortgage-backed securities to a modest amountghrthe end of 2009. It is currently planned for iarMae and Freddie Mac to reduce gradually theirtgage-backed
securities portfolios beginning in 2010.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of iHarMae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. Departmerfreisury and FHFA have entered into preferreckstoc
purchase agreements between the U.S. Departmé@&neéadury, or the Treasury, and Fannie Mae and kgéddc pursuant to which the Treasury will ensina each of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a positive net wdiiththe Treasury has established a new securatifg credit facility which will be available to Raie Mae, Freddie Mac,
and the Federal Home Loan Banks, which is intetdestrve as a liquidity backstop, which will be igaale until December 2009; and (iii) the Treashas initiated a temporary
program to purchase RMBS issued by Fannie Mae agdfiie Mac. Although the Treasury has committgatahto Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, there candbassurance that
these actions will be adequate for their needhes$e actions are inadequate, Fannie Mae and Erbftiti could continue to suffer losses and coulddanonor their guarantees
and other obligations. The future roles of FanneeMnd Freddie Mac could be significantly redugeditae nature of their guarantees could be corediffediminished. Any
changes to the nature of the guarantees providéabygie Mae and Freddie Mac could redefine whastitoiies Mortgage-Backed Securities and could tewad adverse
market implications.
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Given the highly fluid and evolving nature of theseents, it is unclear how our business will beactpd. Based upon the further activity of the g&ernment or
market response to developments at Fannie Maeeoidie Mac, our business could be adversely impacted

The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008E&SA, was enacted in October 2008. The EESAigesvthe U.S. Secretary of the Treasury with thaarity
to establish a Troubled Asset Relief Program, oRPAto purchase from financial institutions up @@ billion of equity or preferred securities, desitial or commercial
mortgages and any securities, obligations, or atferuments that are based on or related to swrtgages, that in each case was originated ordssner before March 14,
2008, as well as any other financial instrument tha U.S. Secretary of the Treasury, after coatiot with the Chairman of the Board of Governdrthe Federal Reserve
System, determines the purchase of which is negegsaromote financial market stability, upon tsamittal of such determination, in writing, to thepaopriate committees of
the U.S. Congress. The EESA also provides foognam that would allow companies to insure th&iulbled assets.

The U.S. Government, Federal Reserve and otherganntal and regulatory bodies have taken or amsidering taking other actions to address the fir@dn
crisis. The Term Asset-Backed Securities Loanlfacor TALF, was first announced by the TreasoryNovember 25, 2008, and has been expanded irsizecope since its
initial announcement. Under the TALF, the Fed&aserve Bank of New York, or the FRBNY, providesmiecourse loans to borrowers to fund their puseha eligible
assets, which currently includes certain ABS butRiBS or CMBS. On March 23, 2009, the U.S. Tregsannounced preliminary plans to expand the TALmhttude non-
Agency RMBS and CMBS. On May 1, 2009, the FedersdeRve provided more of the details as to how TAL#6 be expanded to newly issued CMBS and expistihat
beginning in June 2009, up to $100 billion of TAldans will be available to finance purchases of GvBeated on or after January 1, 2009. In additche ability of newly
issued CMBS to become collateral under the TALFMay 19, 2009, the Federal Reserve provided detailthe types of legacy CMBS that is eligible tadrae collateral und:
the TALF. To become eligible collateral under th&LF, the legacy CMBS must issued before JanuaB009 and must be senior in payment priority ta#ier interests in the
underlying pool of commercial mortgages meet certdiner criteria designed to protect the FederaeRee and the U.S. Treasury from credit risk. Batvly issued CMBS and
legacy CMBS must have at least two triple-A ratifigen DBRS, Fitch Ratings, Moody's Investors SeeviRealpoint, or Standard Poor’s and must not lhanating below triple-
A from any of these rating agencies to becomeldégiollateral under the TALF. To date, neither HRBNY nor the U.S. Treasury has announced how &ie~ will be
expanded to cover non-Agency RMBS.

In addition, on March 23, 2009, the U.S. Treasumgonjunction with the Federal Deposit Insuranegg@ration, or FDIC, and the Federal Reserve, anced the
establishment of the Public-Private Investment Rrog or PPIP. The PPIP is designed to encourageahsfer of certain illiquid legacy real estatéated assets off of the
balance sheets of financial institutions, restgrtlre market for these assets and supporting ¢hedf credit and other capital into the broademeroy. The PPIP is expected to
be $500 billion to $1 trillion in size and has tyomary components: the Legacy Securities Prograditiae Legacy Loan Program. Under the Legacy SeesifProgram, Legac
Securities Public-Private Investment Funds, or BRIl be established to purchase from finanaiatitutions certain noAgency RMBS and CMBS that were originally rate
the highest rating category by one or more of #@nally recognized statistical rating organizaioUnder the Legacy Loan Program, Legacy Loan $#®RilF be established to
purchase troubled loans (including residential emaimercial mortgage loans) from insured depositustitutions.
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As these programs are still in early stages of kdgweent, it is not possible for us to predict hdwege programs will impact our business. Althougts¢haggressive
steps are intended to protect and support the WSiig and mortgage market, we continue to operaderwery difficult market conditions. As a restiitere can be no
assurance that the EESA, the TARP, the TALF, PPIgther policy initiatives will have a beneficiahpact on the financial markets, including currettt@me levels of
volatility. We cannot predict whether or when saciions may occur or what impact, if any, suchoastcould have on our business, results of operatand financial
condition.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tfteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of operations will primgrdepend on,
among other things, the level of our net interesbime, the market value of our assets, and theysoppnd demand for such assets. Our net intémestme, which reflects the
amortization of purchase premiums and accretiatisgfounts, varies primarily as a result of charigasterest rates, borrowing costs, and prepayrspaéds, which is a
measurement of how quickly borrowers pay down thgaid principal balance on their mortgage loans.

Prepayment SpeedBrepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constgmay@nent Rate, or CPR, vary according to interdssrdhe type of investment, conditions in
financial markets, competition and other factommaenof which can be predicted with any certaiftygeneral, when interest rates rise, it is reldgivess attractive for borrowers
to refinance their mortgage loans, and as a rga@phayment speeds tend to decrease. When intatestfall, prepayment speeds tend to increagsenbagage loan and RMBS
investments purchased at a premium, as prepaympeatls increase, the amount of income we earn deéecause the purchase premium we paid for tigskaonortizes
faster than expected. Conversely, decreases raypmeent speeds result in increased income andxtencethe period over which we amortize the purelemium. For
mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchased iatauht, as prepayment speeds increase, the arbinmtome we earn increases because of the actieted the accretio
of the discount into interest income. Converseggréases in prepayment speeds result in decreasmdeé and can extend the period over which we tetiie purchase discol
into interest income.

Rising Interest Rate Environme#ts indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease, increasing ounteeést income. Rising interest
rates, however, increase our financing costs wiali result in a net negative impact on our ner@sieincome. In addition, if we acquire Agency at-Agency RMBS
collateralized by monthly reset adjustable-ratetgages, or ARMs, and three- and five-year hybridsRsuch interest rate increases could result énedeses in our net
investment income, as there could be a timing mismbetween the interest rate reset dates on oBRpbrtfolio and the financing costs of these itwvets. Monthly reset
ARMs are ARMs on which coupon rates reset monthlselol on indices such as the one-month London bot&rDffering Rate, or LIBOR. Hybrid ARMs are maagges that
have interest rates that are fixed for an initedigpd (typically three, five, seven or ten yeansil #hereafter reset at regular intervals subjeaiterest rate caps.

With respect to our floating rate investments, simbérest rate increases should result in incresesr net investment income because our floatatg assets are
greater in amount than the related floating rabilities. Similarly, such an increase in intenedes should generally result in an increase imetiinvestment income on fixed-
rate investments made by us because our fixecasstets would be greater in amount than our fixeslli@bilities. We expect, however, that our fixede assets would decline
in value in a rising interest rate environment #rat our net interest spreads on fixed rate assetisl decline in a rising interest rate environnterthe extent such assets are
financed with floating rate debt.
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Falling Interest Rate Environmems interest rates fall, prepayment speeds gendralhgase, decreasing our net interest incomeingahterest rates, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgpositive impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and non-Agency RM&#ateralized by
monthly reset adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMd,three- and five-year hybrid ARMs, such interas¢ decreases could result in increases in ounnestment income, as
there could be a timing mismatch between the istaate reset dates on our RMBS portfolio and ifenfting costs of these investments. Monthly rést¥is are ARMs on
which coupon rates reset monthly based on indigels as the one-month London Interbank Offering RatéIBOR. Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that havieiast rates that
are fixed for an initial period (typically threayé&, seven or ten years) and thereafter resegataeintervals subject to interest rate caps.

With respect to our floating rate investments, simtérest rate decreases may result in decreases imet investment income because our floating aasets may be
greater in amount than the related floating ratbilities. Similarly, such a decrease in interage¢s should generally result in an increase imetiinvestment income on fixed-
rate investments made by us because our fixecasstets would be greater in amount than our fixeslli@bilities. We expect, however, that our fixede assets would increase
in value in a falling interest rate environment dinat our net interest spreads on fixed rate assetsl increase in a falling interest rate envirentrto the extent such assets are
financed with floating rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshwilie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy will generally keep our credgdes
and financing costs low. We retain the risk ofgmtial credit losses on all of the residential rgage loans we hold in our portfolio. Additionalsgme of our investments in
RMBS may be qualifying interests for purposes ofntaning our exemption from the 1940 Act becauseretain a 100% ownership interest in the undegiygans. If we
purchase all classes of these securitizations,ave the credit exposure on the underlying loansor o the purchase of these securities, we corawitie diligence process that
allows us to remove loans that do not meet ouritséghdards based on loan-to-value ratios, borrsvegedit scores, income and asset documentatidrother criteria that we
believe to be important indications of credit risk.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as measurethk aggregate unpaid principal balance of ourtgagre loans and aggregate
principal balance of our mortgage related securitied the other assets we own is also a key rewdnver. Generally, as the size of our investnmtfolio grows, the amount
of interest income we receive increases. The tanyestment portfolio, however, drives increasgdenses as we incur additional interest expenfindaace the purchase of our
assets.

Since changes in interest rates may significarffscaour activities, our operating results depandarge part, upon our ability to effectively nzaye interest rate ris|
and prepayment risks while maintaining our statia KEIT.

Current Environment. The current weakness in the broader mortgageetsadould adversely affect one or more of our pigekenders or any of our lenders and
could cause one or more of our potential lendeengrof our lenders to be unwilling or unable toypde us with financing or require us to post aiddial collateral. In general,
this could potentially increase our financing castsl reduce our liquidity or require us to sellesst an inopportune time. We expect to use eoeuiwf sources to finance our
investments, including repurchase agreements, wasghfacilities, securitizations, asset-backed ceroial paper and term CDOs. Current market camuthave affected the
cost and availability of financing from each of $besources and their individual providers to déférdegrees; some sources generally are unavaitabtee are available but at a
high cost, and some are largely unaffected. Famgte, in the repurchase agreement market, borsoiaere been affected differently depending onyhe bf security they are
financing. Non-Agency RMBS have been harder tarfte, depending on the type of assets collatergltie RMBS. The amount, term and margin requirgmassociated
with these types of financings have been negativepacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigrime residential mortgages are generally availtom major banks, but at significantly highestand have
greater margin requirements than previously offekéahy major banks that offer warehouse facilitiase also reduced the amount of capital availabfeetv entrants and
consequently the size of those facilities offered/rare smaller than those previously availablee d&/cided to terminate our two whole loan repurefageements in order to
avoid paying non-usage fees under those agreements.
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Itis currently a challenging market to term finarwehole loans through securitization or bonds idduea CDO structure. The highly rated senior bandkese
securitizations and CDO structures currently hayadity, but at much wider spreads than issuesagrin recent history. The junior subordinate tre®cof these structures
currently have few buyers and current market cémtithave forced issuers to retain these lowedratends rather than sell them.

Certain issuers of ABCP have been unable to place(l) their securities, which has resulted, @me instances, in forced sales of MBS and otharrges which ha
further negatively impacted the market value obthassets. These market conditions are fluidikaly lto change over time. As a result, the exiecuof our investment
strategy may be dictated by the cost and avaitghafi financing from these different sources.

If one or more major market participants fails treywise experiences a major liquidity crisis, @swhe case for Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008 L@hman
Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 2008, it couddatively impact the marketability of all fixeccwmme securities and this could negatively impaetvhlue of the securities \
acquire, thus reducing our net book value. Funioee, if many of our potential lenders or any of nders are unwilling or unable to provide ushWihancing, we could be
forced to sell our securities or residential mogggéans at an inopportune time when prices aresdspd.

As described above, there has been significantrgavent action in the capital markets. Howevertdtean be no assurance that the governmeations with respe
to Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae, the EESA, the TAR®TALF, the PPIP or other policy initiatives whlve a beneficial impact on the financial markietsiuding current
extreme levels of volatility. To the extent therket does not respond favorably to these action)ese actions do not function as intended, osirlass may not receive the
anticipated positive impact from them. In addititme U.S. Government, Federal Reserve and othergmental and regulatory bodies have taken ocemeidering taking
other actions to address the financial crisis. Wenot predict whether or when such actions mayracwhat impact, if any, such actions could hameoar business, results of
operations and financial condition.

In the current market, it may be difficult or impsdsle to obtain third party pricing on the investiteewe purchase. In addition, validating thirdtparicing for our
investments may be more subjective as fewer ppatits may be willing to provide this service to Woreover, the current market is more illiquidrthia recent history for son
of the investments we purchase. llliquid investtagypically experience greater price volatilityaseady market does not exist.  As volatilitgremses or liquidity decreases
we may have greater difficulty financing our invaents which may negatively impact our earningsthedexecution of our investment strategy.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeaccounting principles generally acceptechia nited States of America, or GAAP. These actingn
principles may require us to make some complexsajective decisions and assessments. Our mésateccounting policies will involve decisionscaassessments that co
affect our reported assets and liabilities, as aglbur reported revenues and expenses. We bétiavall of the decisions and assessments upochvehir consolidated financial
statements are based will be reasonable at thentiatke and based upon information available to tisaatime. At each quarter end, we calculaterestiéd fair value of the
investment portfolio using a pricing model. Weidlate our pricing model by obtaining independentipg on all of our assets and performing a vesificn of those sources to
our own internal estimate of fair value. The fallog are our most critical accounting policies:

Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

We periodically enter into transactions in which sed financial assets, such as RMBS, mortgageslaa other assets. We also securitize and reiseedinancial
assets. These transactions are recorded in acmerddth Statement of Financial Account Standat854AS”) No. 140,Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilit(“SFAS 140”) and are accounted for as either ag"sahd the loans held for investment are removeuh fthe consolidated statements of
financial condition or as a “financing” and aresd#ied as “Securitized loans held for investmamnt'the Company’s consolidated statements of firdmaindition, depending
upon the structure of the securitization transactim these securitizations and re-securitizatwwasometimes retain or acquire senior or suboteihiterests in the securitized
or re-securitized assets. Gains and losses onsaathitizations or re-securitizations are recogahiasing the guidance in SFAS 140 which is baseal famancial components
approach that focuses on control. Under this agrpafter a transfer of financial assets, anyergitognizes the financial and servicing assetsnitrols and the liabilities it has
incurred, derecognizes financial assets when cbné®been surrendered, and derecognizes liabiiitteen extinguished.

30




We determine the gain or loss on sale of mortgaged by allocating the carrying value of the unded mortgage between securities or loans soldth@dnterests
retained based on their fair values. The gaimss bn sale is the difference between the caslegdscdrom the sale and the amount allocated tseberities or loans sold.

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSEBFFAS No. 140-3Accounting for Transfers of Financial

Assets and Repurchase Financing Transact, (“SFAS 140-3"). SFAS 143-addresses whether transactions where assetsapactfrom a particular counterparty and finar
through a repurchase agreement with the same apanty can be considered and accounted for asaepaansactions, or are required to be considéirded” transactions ar
may be considered derivatives under SFAS 133. SHAEB requires purchases and subsequent financingghnapurchase agreements be considered linkedattémss unles
all of the following conditions apply: (1) the fi@l purchase and the use of repurchase agreenefitsince the purchase are not contractually ogetit upon each other; (2)
repurchase financing entered into between thegsaptiovides full recourse to the transferee aadepurchase price is fixed; (3) the financial tssaee readily obtainable in the
market; and (4) the financial instrument and thgurehase agreement are not coterminous. This RSReffective for us as of January 1, 2009. We rieetequirements of this
FSP to treat repurchase financings as non-linketsactions and this FSP has no effect on finanegearting.

Valuation of Investments

On January 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS No. Eait, Value Measuremen(8SFAS 157") which defines fair value, establislzeSamework for measuring fair value,
and establishes a three-level valuation hierarohylisclosure of fair value measurement and enladiselosure requirements for fair value measurésnenhe valuation
hierarchy is based upon the transparency of injutise valuation of an asset or liability as of theasurement date. The three levels are defintallaws:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology anetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdlities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology inlgwguoted prices for similar assets and liabiliteactive markets, and inputs that are observianlthe asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for substtially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to overall fair value.

Non-Agency and Agency Mortgage-Backed Securitiesvatued using a pricing model. The MBS pricingdelancorporates such factors as coupons, prepaymen
speeds, spread to the Treasury and swap curvegexion duration, periodic and life caps, and ctesihancement. Management reviews the fair valeesrmined by the
pricing model and compares its results to dealetepireceived on each investment to validate theorableness of the valuations indicated by the@ngrimodels. The dealer
quotes incorporate common market pricing methaududing a spread measurement to the Treasury auriveerest rate swap curve as well as underlghmyacteristics of the
particular security including coupon, periodic difiel caps, rate reset period, issuer, additionedlitrsupport and expected life of the security.
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Although we utilize a pricing model to compute fa& value of the securities in our portfolio, walidate our fair values by seeking indicationsaif f/alue from
third-party dealers and/or pricing services. Theakility of fair value among dealers and pricirendgces can be wide at this time as full liquidity the non-Agency market has
yet to return. In addition, there are fewer p@stiats in the RMBS sector available to fair valmeeistments. For June 30, 2009, we received dewléts on all of ou
securities. In the aggregate, our internal vaduatof the securities on which we received dealarks were 0.05% lower than the aggregated dealeksn

In October 2008, FASB issued FSP FAS No. 15D&germining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset Whiee Market for That Asset Is Not Acti{EAS 157-3"), in
response to the deterioration of the credit mark&tss FSP provides guidance clarifying how SFAS,Ishould be applied when valuing securities imkeis that are not active.
The guidance provides an illustrative example dpglies the objectives and framework of SFAS 15ilizing management’s internal cash flow and distoate assumptions
when relevant observable data do not exist. thaurclarifies how observable market informationd amarket quotes should be considered when measfaiingalue in an
inactive market. It reaffirms the notion of faglue as an exit price as of the measurement datéhat fair value analysis is a transactional esscand should not be broadly
applied to a group of assets. FAS 157-3 was éffectpon issuance including prior periods for whiittancial statements have not been issued. Thémentation of FAS 157-
3 did not have a material effect on the fair valfieur assets as we intend to continue the metlogis used in previous quarters to value assetefased under the original
SFAS 157.

In October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilizefiot of 2008 (the “EESA”) was signed into law. cBen 133 of the EESA mandated that the SEC conaluct
study on mark-to-market accounting standards. SEB€ provided its study to the US Congress on Deee®®, 2008. Part of the recommendations withénsttudy indicated
that “fair value requirements should be improvewtiygh development of application and best practizedance for determining fair value in illiquid iractive markets”. As a
result of this study and the recommendations theos April 9, 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS Na.-45Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Levéaivity for
the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased Identifying Transactions That Are Not OrdgflJAS 157-4"). This FSP provides additional guidaron determining fair
value when the volume and level of activity for eset or liability have significantly decreasedewltompared with normal market activity for theehss liability (or similar
assets or liabilities). The FSP gives specifitdecto evaluate if there has been a decreasermatanarket activity and if so, provides a methadyl to analyze transactions or
quoted prices and make necessary adjustments teefae in accordance with SFAS 157. The objedsve determine the point within a range of faatue estimates that is
most representative of fair value under currentk@aconditions. FAS 157-4 became effective foonslune 30, 2009.

Additionally, in conjunction with FAS 157-4, the I8 issued FSP FAS No. 115-2 and FSP FAS No. 1Re@ognition and Presentation of Other Than Temporar
Impairments(“FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2") The objective of the new guidance is to make impairt guidance more operational and to improve thegntation and disclosure
of other-than-temporary impairments (OTTI) on dabd equity securities in financial statements.sTtdo, was as a result of the SEC mark-to-mairketysmandated under the
EESA. The SEC'’s recommendation was ¢wdluate the need for modifications (or the elirtiorg of current OTTI guidance to provide for a mamiform system of impairme
testing standards for financial instruments.” Tieev guidance revises the OTTI evaluation methodold@reviously the analytical focus was on whetherentity had theifitent
and ability to retain its investment in the deltgdéty for a period of time sufficient to allow fany anticipated recovery in fair value.” Now fioeus is on whether the entity
has the “intent to sell the debt security or, miwely than not, will be required to sell the dedetcurity before its anticipated recovery.” Furthibe security is analyzed for credit
loss (the difference between the present valuasifi lows expected to be collected and the amartipst basis). If we do not intend to sell thetdszurity, nor will be require
to sell the debt security prior to its anticipatedovery, the credit loss, if any, will be recogrdan the statement of earnings, while the balafidepairment related to other
factors will be recognized in Other Comprehensiveome (OCI). If we intend to sell the securitywoll be required to sell the security before itgieipated recovery, the full
OTTI will be recognized in the statement of earsingrAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 became effective fasrudune 30, 2009. The adoption of these rulesididesult in a
cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnimghé period of adoption but changed the mannéntkaevaluate investment securities for other-tteanporary impairments.
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In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 107-@ Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 28-thterim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments(“FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1") The FSP requires disclosures about fair valuenafritial instruments for interim reporting periodsazll as in annual financial
statements. The adoption of FSP FAS 107-1 and 28B increased footnote disclosure. This FSPrheceffective for us on June 30, 2009.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtblsy management to ensure the changes are aeogks markets and products develop and the gricin
certain products becomes more transparent, wereantd refine our valuation methodologies. The méshused by us may produce a fair value calculaiahmay not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflectivefofure fair values. Furthermore, while we beliexs valuation methods are appropriate and congistigm other market
participants, the use of different methodologiesassumptions, to determine the fair value of tefiaancial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the
reporting date. We use inputs that are curreof 8% measurement date, which may include perdasarket dislocation, during which price transpememay be reduced. TI
condition could cause our financial instrumentbéareclassified from Level 2 to Level 3.

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we tiagsified the valuation of our RMBS as “Level Z'described above. There were no transfers bethessis
1, 2 and 3 between December 31, 2008 and June)80, 2

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

Our securitized residential mortgage loans are cm®p of fixed-rate and variable-rate loans. Wechase pools of residential mortgage loans thraugélect group
of originators. Mortgage loans are designatededd for investment, recorded on trade date, anaamged at their principal balance outstandingsmny premiums or discounts
which are amortized or accreted over the estimidedf the loan, less allowances for loan losses.

Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-BackedeSurities

We invest in RMBS representing interests in obl@a backed by pools of mortgage loans and caoyelsecurities at fair value estimated using angic
model. Management reviews the fair values geneéfayehe model to determine whether prices arecéfle of the current market. Management perfoanaalidation of the fai
value calculated by the pricing model by compaitegesults to independent prices provided by deafethe securities and/or third party pricingviegs. If dealers or
independent pricing services are unable to progigece for an asset, or if the price providedhmmn is deemed unreliable by FIDAC, then the as#ebe/valued at its fair
value as determined in good faith by FIDAC. In therent market, it may be difficult or impossiliteobtain third party pricing on certain of our @stments. In addition,
validating third party pricing for our investmemtgy be more subjective as fewer participants mayibieg to provide this service to us. Moreov#re current market is more
illiquid than in recent history for some of the @stments we own. llliquid investments typicallperence greater price volatility as a ready madcets not exist. As volatility
increases or liquidity decreases, we may have greifficulty financing its investments which maggatively impact its earnings and the executioitsohvestment strategy.
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SFAS No. 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgSecuritie"SFAS 115”), requires us to classify its investment securiteeegither trading
investments, available-for-sale investments or teithaturity investments. We intend to hold its RSIBs available-for-sale and as such may sell aitg &MVBS as part of its
overall management of its portfolio. All assetasdlified as available-farale are reported at estimated fair value, witlealiwed gains and losses included in other comphe
income.

When the fair value of an available-for-sale segus less than its amortized cost for an exteruibd or there is a significant decline in valwe, consider whether
there is other-than-temporary impairment in thaigadf the security. If, based on our analysigedlit portion of other-than-temporary impairmeniséx the cost basis of the
security is written down to the then-current faatue, and the unrealized loss is transferred frooumulated other comprehensive loss as an immedidtestion of current
earnings (as if the loss had been realized in ¢éniog of other-than-temporary impairment). Theedetination of other-than-temporary impairment suajective process, and
different judgments and assumptions could affeetitiming of loss realization.

We consider the following factors when determinatiger-than-temporary impairment for a security:
« the length of time and the extent to which the reaxkalue has been less than the amortized cost;
« and the financial condition and near-term prospetthe issuer;
« the credit quality and cash flow performance ofgbeurity; and
« whether we will be more likely than not requiredsgll the investment before the expected recovery.

The determination of other-than-temporary impairtiemade at least quarterly. If we determinerapdirment to be other than temporary we will reabzloss
which will negatively impact current income.

RMBS transactions are recorded on the trade d@éalized gains and losses from sales of RMBS amrrdned based on the specific identification mdthod
recorded as a gain (loss) on sale of investmerttgeistatement of operations. Accretion of dis¢ean amortization of premiums on available-foressécurities and mortgage
loans is computed using the effective interestdyiebthod and is included as a component of intémestne in the statement of operations.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No.1&&;ounting for Transfers of Financial AssétSFAS 166"), which amends the de-recognition gaiziin SFAS 140.
SFAS 166 eliminates the concept of a Qualified &bdéturpose Entity (‘QSPE”) and eliminates the gt from applying FIN 46R. Additionally, thig&8ement clarifies that
the objective of paragraph 9 of SFAS 140 is to meitee whether a transferor has surrendered coatrer transferred financial assets. That detertiinanust consider the
transferor’s continuing involvements in the tramefd financial asset, including all arrangementagreements made contemporaneously with, or irecapifition of, the
transfer, even if they were not entered into attitine of the transfer. This Statement modifiesfihancial-components approach used in Statem#hafd limits the
circumstances in which a financial asset, or partiba financial asset, should be derecognized vihetransferor has not transferred the entiremaldinancial asset to an ent
that is not consolidated with the transferor infihancial statements being presented and/or winetransferor has continuing involvement with ttamsferred financial asset. It
defines the term “participating interest” to estsiblspecific conditions for reporting a transfermgbortion of a financial asset as a sale. Urlisrstatement, when the transfer of
financial assets are accounted for as a salerahsferor must recognize and initially measureaatvalue all assets obtained and liabilities imedras a result of the transfer.
This includes any retained beneficial intereste Thplementation of this standard materially aettie securitization process in general, as itiehtes off-balance sheet
transactions when an entity retains any interest icontrol over assets transferred in this pracétswvever, we do not believe the implementatiothed standard will materially
affect our reporting as we have no off-balance straesactions nor any unconsolidated QSPEs. Taetiwe date for SFAS 166 is January 1, 2010.

In conjunction with SFAS 166, FASB issued SFAS 1®7,Amendments to FIN 46RSFAS 167”). This statement requires an enteeptisperform an analysis to
determine whether the enterprise’s variable intesegterests give it a controlling financial inést in a variable interest entity. The analydentifies the primary beneficiary of
a VIE as the enterprise that has both: a) the psoovdirect the activities that most significantigpact the entity’s economic performance and bptiigation to absorb losses of
the entity or the right to receive benefits frora timtity which could potentially be significanttte VIE. With the removal of the QSPE exemptiestablished QSPE’s must be
evaluated for consolidation under this statemdihiis statement requires enhanced disclosures taderasers of financial statements with more transpt information about
and enterprises involvement in a VIE. We are oottently, the primary beneficiary of any uncondated VIEs. Further, this statement also requirgging assessments of
whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiarg MIE. Should we treat securitizations as salebé future, we will analyze the transactions urtle guidelines of SFAS 167
for consolidation. The effective date for SFAS 1§3anuary 1, 2010. Upon implementation andegsired by the standard, on an ongoing basis, a# asess the
applicability of this standard to our holdings aegort accordingly.
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Interest Income

Interest income on RMBS and loans held for investnerecognized over the life of the investmenbgshe effective interest method as described B&SNo. 91,
Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Astetiwith Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initillirect Costs of Leas¢(“"SFAS 91"), for securities of high credit quali
and Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 99R8cognition of Interest Income and Impairment orcRased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Sézed Financial
Assets as amended by FSP EITF No. 99-20-Amendments to the Impairment Guidance of EIT&e€9-20“EITF 99-20-1"), for all other securities. Incomecognition is
suspended for loans when, in the opinion of managena full recovery of income and principal becsrdeubtful. Income recognition is resumed whendba becomes
contractually current and performance is demorestréd be resumed.

In January 2009, the FASB issued EITF 99-20HITF 99-20-1 was issued in an effort to provide @enconsistent determination on whether an othem-thmporary
impairment has occurred for certain beneficialri@sts in securitized financial assets. Other-tlemmporary impairment has occurred if there has la@eadverse change in futt
estimated cash flow and its impact reflected imenirearnings. The determination cannot be oveecoynmanagement judgment of the probability ofexlhg all cash flows
previously projected. For debt securities thatraxewithin the scope of EITF 99-20-1, SFAS 115teures to apply. The objective of other-than-tenapp impairment analysis
is to determine whether it is probable that thelbolill realize some portion of the unrealizedsla® an impaired security. Factors to considemwheking an other-than-
temporary impairment decision include informatidroat past events, current conditions, reasonatilesapportable forecasts, remaining payment terimsnéial condition of
the issuer, expected defaults, value of underlgwitateral, industry analysis, sector credit ratiagdit enhancement, and financial condition airgntor. Our non-Agency
RMBS investments fall under the guidance of thiSFE&nd as such we assess each security for othestéimporary impairments based on estimated fuash flows. This
EITF became effective for us on December 31, 2008.

Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments andHedging Activities

Our policies permit us to enter into derivative taats, including interest rate swaps and intena@st caps, as a means of mitigating our interéstrisk. We intend to
use interest rate derivative instruments to miégaterest rate risk rather than to enhance retlfrme hedge using interest rate swaps we acdaurthese instruments as free-
standing derivatives. Accordingly, they are cafi fair value with realized and unrealized gaind losses recognized in earnings.

We account for derivative financial instrumentsgtordance with SFAS No. 13&¢counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities (“SFAS 133"), as
amended and interpreted. SFAS 133 requires ary ¢éntiecognize all derivatives as either asset@bilities in the statement of financial conditiand to measure those
instruments at fair value. Additionally, the faalue adjustments will affect either other comprefemincome in stockholders’ equity until the hedigfem is recognized in
earnings or net income depending on whether thgatese instrument qualifies as a hedge for accimgnpurposes and, if so, the nature of the hedgotiyity.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhetivities, an amendment of FASB Statement N®(“SFAS
161"). SFAS 161 attempts to improve the transpareri financial reporting by providing additionaiformation about how derivative and hedging adgsiaffect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance and célstvs. This statement changes the disclosure rements for derivative instruments and hedgingvéiets by requiring
enhanced disclosure about (1) how and why an emsigg derivative instruments, (2) how derivativ&rinments and related hedged items are accounteahder SFAS
Statement 133 and its related interpretations,(&8htlow derivative instruments and related hedg¢ems$ affect an entity’s financial position, finaagperformance, and cash
flows. To meet these objectives, SFAS 161 requjesitative disclosures about objectives and sgias for using derivatives, quantitative disclesuabout fair value amounts
of gains and losses on derivative instruments,cislosures about credit-risk-related contingeatuees in derivative agreements. This disclostaméwork is intended to
better convey the purpose of derivative use in seofrthe risks that an entity is intending to mana§FAS 161 was effective and adopted by us ounadgri, 2009. The
adoption of SFAS 161 will increase footnote disalesif we engage in hedging activities.

In the normal course of business, we may useiatyasf derivative financial instruments to econoailly manage, or hedge, interest rate risk. Theseative
financial instruments must be effective in reducing interest rate risk exposure in order to qudtf hedge accounting. When the terms of an ugthgyltransaction are
modified, or when the underlying hedged item cessexist, all changes in the fair value of therasient are included in net income for each peuniil the derivative
instrument matures or is settled. Any derivativ@rinment used for risk management that does not thededging criteria is carried at fair valuehwtite changes in value
included in net income.

Derivatives will be used for economic hedging pwgmrather than speculation. We will rely on quotest from third parties to determine fair valuésour hedging
activities do not achieve our desired results,reported earnings may be adversely affected.

Allowance for Probable Credit Losses

We have established an allowance for loan lossadeatel that management believes is adequate lmasad evaluation of known and inherent probaldsds related
to our loan portfolio. The estimate is based ety of factors including current economic cdiatis, industry loss experience, the loan origiriatlmss experience, credit
quality trends, loan portfolio composition, delirpey trends, national and local economic trendsomal unemployment data, changes in housing a&jtien or depreciation
and whether specific geographic areas where we signéicant loan concentrations are experiencitigease economic conditions and events such asataisasters that may
affect the local economy or property values. Uparchase of the pools of loans, we obtained writtgmesentations and warranties from the selletsabacould be reimbursed
for the value of the loan if the loan fails to méwet agreed upon origination standards. While aweeHittle history of its own to establish loanrtds, delinquency trends of the
originators and the current market conditions midetermining the allowance for loan losses. Vée gkerformed due diligence procedures on a sanfipd@os that met its
criteria during the purchase process. We haveeademn unallocated provision for probable loandsssstimated as a percentage of the remainingipainan the
loans. Management’s estimate is based on histaigeerience of similarly underwritten pools.

When we determine it is probable that specific rxottially due amounts are uncollectible, the am@iobnsidered impaired. Where impairment is iatéd, a
valuation write-off is measured based upon the €xoé the recorded investment over the net faevalf the collateral, reduced by selling costsy Aaficiency between the
carrying amount of an asset and the net sales pfi@possessed collateral is charged to the alloeor loan losses.

Income Taxes

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxeed REIT. Therefore we will generally not be sebje corporate federal or state income tax toetktent that we
make qualifying distributions to our stockholdeasd provided we satisfy on a continuing basis,ughoactual investment and operating results, the R&quirements including
certain asset, income, distribution and stock osimertests.
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If we fail to qualify as a REIT, and do not qualffyr certain statutory relief provisions, we wik Isubject to federal, state and local income taxelsmay be preclude
from qualifying as a REIT for the subsequent faxable years following the year in which we lost REIT qualification. Accordingly, our failure wualify as a REIT could
have a material adverse impact on our results efaijpns and amounts available for distributionto stockholders.

The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifyidividends to its stockholders is computed usiagtaxable income as opposed to net income reportehe
consolidated financial statements. Taxable incayeaerally, will differ from net income reported tire consolidated financial statements becausddtemination of taxable
income is based on tax provisions and not finaragabunting principles.

We account for income taxes in accordance with SNAS109,Accounting for Income Tax€tSFAS 109”), which requires the recognition of eleed income taxes
for differences between the basis of assets ahdlifies for financial statement and income taxgnses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities repteke future tax consequence
for those differences, which will either be taxabtedeductible when the assets and liabilitiesracevered or settled. Deferred taxes are alsgrezed for operating losses that
are available to offset future taxable income. \#hn allowances are established when necessaegltwe deferred tax assets to the amount expextegirealized. In July 20C
the FASB issued FIN No. 43ccounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxgBIN 48”), an interpretation of SFAS 109. FIN 4Bufies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company'’s financial statemantl prescribes a recognition threshold and measnt attribute for the financial statement rectigniand measurement of
a tax position taken or expected to be taken imeome tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidanceeimecognition, classification, interest and pges| accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 wasdcffe for us upon inception and its effect contimot to be material.

Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subseiieents ("SFAS 165"). SFAS 165 establishes gérstandards governing accounting for and disckosdr
events that occur after the balance sheet datledfate the financial statements are issued oraa#adble to be issued. SFAS 165 also providesandd on the period after the
balance sheet date during which management ofaatieg entity should evaluate events or transastibiat may occur for potential recognition or discire in the financial
statements, the circumstances under which an esfitiyld recognize events or transactions occugfteg the balance sheet date in its financial statés and the disclosures 1
an entity should make about events or transactionarring after the balance sheet date. We add@feéd 165 effective June 30, 2009, and adoptiomimeidhpact on the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements. Wetesaluated subsequent events through the filitg afethis Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, whictiggust 10, 2009.

Financial Condition
At June 30, 2009, our portfolio consisted of $lillfdm of non-Agency RMBS, $1.9 billion of AgencyNRBS and $530.6 million of securitized mortgage l®an
The following table summarizes certain charactesstf our portfolio at the quarters ended June2B09 and 2008 and quarter ended March 31, 2009.
For the Quarter For the Quarter For the Quarter
Ended June 30, Ended June 30, Ended March 3!

2009 2008 2009
(dollars in thousand:

Interest earning assets at pe-end $ 4,166,731 $ 1,880,24¢ $ 1,651,68
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 1,943,41.  $ 1,413,481 $ 1,033,009
Leverage at peric-end 1.0:1 3.6:1 2.4:1
Portfolio Composition
Non-Agency MBS 55.5% 61.8% 54.2%
Agency MBS 34.5% - 17.4%
Residential mortgag - 7.7% -
Loans collateralizing secured d¢ 10.(% 30.5% 28.4%
Fixec-rate % of portfolic 59.7% 20.(% 35.8%
Adjustablerate % of portfolic 40.2% 80.(% 64.2%
Annualized yield on average earning assets duhiag t
period 6.8:% 6.1&% 6.44%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed funds
during the perioi 2.4(% 5.58% 3.4&%
Weighted average yield on assets at p~end 10.2% 6.1&% 7.21%
Weighted average cost of funds at pe-end 1.7¢% 5.35% 3.5™%
The following tables summarize certain charactesstf each asset class in our portfolio at June2809 and December 31, 2008:
Non-Agency Agency
Mortgage- Mortgage-
Backed Backed
June 30, 2009 Securities Securities Secured Loan
Weighted average cost ba 66.5¢ 103.6: 101.02
Weighted average fair value ( 59.2¢ 103.3¢ 101.0z
Weighted average coupt 5.842% 5.52% 5.94%
Fixec-rate % of portfolic 20.8% 34.5% 4.4%
Adjustablerate % of portfolic 34.71% - 5.6%
Weighted average yield on assets at p~end 14.8%% 4.3% 5.24%
Weighted average cost of funds at pe-end 1.7%% 0.4% 5.64%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 16.(% 24.2% 21.2%
Non-Agency Agency
Mortgage- Mortgage-
Backed Backed
December 31, 2008 Securities Securities Secured Loan
98.01 102.7: 101.0¢

Weighted average cost ba



Weighted average fair value ( 68.1¢ 103.5¢ 101.0¢

Weighted average coupt 5.97% 6.65% 5.95%
Fixec-rate % of portfolic 1.2% 13.7% 15.(%
Adjustablerate % of portfolic 51.2% - 18.£%
Weighted average yield on assets at p~end 6.65% 6.0(% 4.7%
Weighted average cost of funds at pe-end 1.64% 0.55% 5.55%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 12.5% 14.5% 7.€%

(1) Secured loans are carried at amortized cost.
(2) Represents the estimated percentage of pahttiat will be prepaid over the next three moriithsed on historical principal paydowns.

37




The table below summarizes our RMBS investmendsiaé 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

June 30, 200 December 31, 200
Non-agency Non-agency
RMBS Agency RMBS RMBS Agency RMBS
(dollars in thousand:
Principal value $ 294741 $ 1,827,57. $ 899,45¢ $ 233,97¢
Unamortized premiur 2,25: 65,89( 2,10¢ 6,35(
Unamortized discour (987,01 - (29,759 -
Gross unrealized ga 34,56( 8,30¢ 5,66t 2,03¢
Gross unrealized loss (250,676 (12,219 (274,369 -
Fair value $ 1,74654. $ 1,889,55( $ 613,10! $ 242,36:

As of June 30, 2009, the RMBS in our portfolio wptechased at a net discount to their par valuer RMBS had a weighted average amortized cost @8@&nd
99.0% at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, atbsgy.

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtiséated contractual maturities, as they are afteby the contractual lives of the underlying maggs, periodic
payments of principal, and prepayments of principak stated contractual final maturity of the rgage loans underlying our portfolio of RMBS rangeso 38 years, but the
expected maturity is subject to change based opréayments of the underlying loans. As of June2B09, the average final contractual maturityhef RMBS portfolio is 29
years, and as of December 31, 2008, it was 30 yddrs estimated weighted average months to matofithe RMBS in the tables below are based uparpeepaymen
expectations, which are based on both proprietadysaibscription-based financial models. Our prepyt projections consider current and expectedigéminterest rates,
interest rate volatility, steepness of the yieldveythe mortgage rate of the outstanding loare tioreset and the spread margin of the reset.

The constant prepayment rate, or CPR, attemptsetiiqh the percentage of principal that will bepaiel over a period of time. We calculate averaB&©n a
quarterly basis based on historical principal pay As interest rates rise, the rate of re-finagsitypically declines, which we expect may reBulower rates of prepayment
and, as a result, a lower portfolio CPR. Conversadyinterest rates fall, the rate offiancings typically increases, which we expect mesult in higher rates of prepayment ¢
as a result, a higher portfolio CPR.

After the reset date, interest rates on our hyadidistable rate RMBS securities adjust annuallgbam spreads over various LIBOR and Treasury @sli€hese
interest rates are subject to caps that limit theunt the applicable interest rate can increasegany year, known as periodic cap, and throughthturity of the applicable
security, known as a lifetime cap. The weighted-age periodic cap for the portfolio is an increa0.8% and the weighted average maximum lifetinezeéases and decreases
for the portfolio are 8.2%.
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The following tables summarize our RMBS accordioghieir estimated weighted average life classifices at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

June 30, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos
Less than one ye: $ 18,22: $ 16,871 $ - $ =
Greater than one year and less than five y 1,037,97. 1,210,74. 1,761,73. 1,765,54.
Greater than five years 690,34¢ 735,04! 127,81¢ 127,92.
Total $ 1,746,54. $ 1,962,65 $ 1,889,55( $ 1,893,46.
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos
Less than one ye: $ - % - $ - $ =
Greater than one year and less than five y 525,80: 735,50¢ 242,36: 240,32¢
Greater than five years 87,30 146,30( - -
Total $ 613,10 $ 881,80¢ $ 242,36:  $ 240,32t

Results of Operations for the Quarters and Six Mortis Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008.
Net Income/Loss Summary

Our net income for the quarter endede R0y 2009 was $51.6 million, or $0.10 per sharg. @2t income was generated primarily by intenesbme on our portfolio. Our
net income for the quarter ended June 30, 2008p8a9 million, or $0.87 per share. We attribute decrease in our net income per share for theequemded June 30, 2009 as
compared to June 30, 2008 to the unrealized gauoimterest rate swaps recorded during the seqaader 2008. Our income for the second quaf@@BZonsisted primarily
of interest income and unrealized gains on inteastswaps.

Our net income for the six months ended June 309 2¢as $70.5 million, or $0.21 per share. Ourimedme was generated primarily by interest incomeir
portfolio. Our net loss for the six months endede)30, 2008 was $21.0 million or ($0.54) per shakée attribute the net loss for the six monthseehdune 30, 2008 primarily
to unrealized losses on our interest rate swapdafaér value adjustments and realized lossesatesf investments.
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The table below presents the net income/loss sugnfoathe quarters and six months ended June 319 2ad 2008:

Net Income/Loss Summary

(dollars in thousands, except for share and peesteta)

For the Quarter Ended June 30

For the Six Months Ended June 3(

200¢ 200¢ 200¢ 200¢
Net Interest income:
Interest incomt $ 65,077 $ 29,95! 93,08¢ 58,14t
Interest expens 8,312 20,02¢ 17,35t 34,04
Net interest incom 56,76¢ 9,92¢ 75,72¢ 24,09¢
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total other-than-temporary impairment
losses (8,57%) - (8,57%) -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in
other comprehensive incor 2,08( - 2,08( -
Net othe-than-temporary impairment
losses
included in incom: (6,49%) - (6,49%) -
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate
swaps - 25,58¢ - (5,909
Realized gains (losses) on sales of
investments, ne 9,321 1,64 12,94¢ (31,179
Realized gains on terminations of
interest rate swaj - 123 - 123
Total other gains (losse 9,321 27,35 12,94¢ (36,960
Net investment income (expen: 59,59( 37,27 82,18 (12,86:)
Other expenses:
Management fe 5,95¢ 2,22¢ 8,53¢ 4,458
Provision for loan losse 1,13 (15) 1,36: 1,16¢
General and administrative expen 861 1,167 1,76¢€ 2,55¢E
Total other expense 7,94¢€ 3,38( 11,66¢ 8,174
Income (loss) before income tax 51,64« 33,897 70,51« (21,03¢)
Income tav - - 1 3
Net income (loss $ 51,64¢ $ 33,891 70,51% (21,039
Net income (loss) per she— basic and
diluted $ 0.1C $ 0.87 0.21 (0.59)
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding — basic and diluted
503,110,13 38,999,85! 341,053,85 38,995,09
Comprehensive income (loss;
Net income (loss $ 51,64¢ $ 33,891 70,511 (21,039
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-
for-sale securitie 39,50! (58,05)) 53,09: (146,309
Reclassification adjustment for net losses
included in net income for other-than-
temporary impairmen 6,49t - 6,49t -
Reclassification adjustment for
realized (gains) losses included
in net income (9,327) (1,649 (12,94¢) 31,17«
Other comprehensive income (lo 36,67 (59,695) 46,63¢ (115,139
Comprehensive income (los $ 88,31¢ $ (25,799 117,15: (136,17

See notes to consolidated financial statem:
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Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $3.8 billion 4r@ illion for the quarters ended June 30, 20092008, and $2.8 billion and $1.7 billion for the sionths ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Our inténesime was $65.1 million and $30.0 million for tipearters ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 and $9Bidnnaind $58.1 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 208Bengively. Our interest income increase resuliah the increase in our interest earning assetshwbllowed our 2009
secondary offerings. The annualized yield on artfplio was 6.83% and 6.18% for the quarters entiete 30, 2009 and 2008 and 6.70% and 6.38% farixhraonths ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The incrieetbee annualized yield is attributed to the passh of higher yielding assets with the proceeds fwar 2009 secondary
offerings.

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

Our largest expense is the cost of borrowed fuMide.had average borrowed funds of $1.4 billion &bd billion and total interest expense of $8.3liomland $20.0
million for the quarters ended June 30, 2009 ar@B26espectively. We had average borrowed fundgld? billion and $1.4 billion and total interegpense of $17.4 million
and $34.0 million for the six months ended June2B0@9 and 2008, respectively. Our annualized abftnds was 2.40% and 5.53% for the quarters eddee 30, 2009 and
2008, and 2.86% and 4.91% for the six months edded 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The detlingerest expense is related to a decrease ibdhrewing rates for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 as compared to theegeaded June 30, 2008, the decrease in borrawets f and the termination of interest rate swaps.

The table below shows our average borrowed fumdistést expense, average cost of funds, averagmonth LIBOR, average six-month LIBOR, average am@th
LIBOR relative to average six-month LIBOR, and ag® cost of funds relative to average one- andnsoiith LIBOR for the quarters ended June 30, 28€@8¢ch 31, 2009, ye
ended December 31, 2008, the quarters ended Dec@&hp2008, September 30, 2008, and June 30, 2008.

Average Cost of Funds
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Average One-

Month Average Cos  Average Cos
LIBOR of Funds of Funds
Average Relative to Relative Relative to
Average Average One- Average Average Six- to Average Average Six-
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Six-Month Month One-Month Month
Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
For the quarter ended June 30,
2009 $ 1,386,53" $ 8,31z 2.4(% 0.37% 1.3%% (1.02%) 2.0% 1.01%
For the quarter ended March 31,
2009 $ 1,038,446/ $ 9,042 3.4&% 0.4€% 1.74% (1.28%) 3.02% 1.74%
For the year ended December 3:
2008 $ 1,304,87. $ 60,54« 4.64% 2.68% 3.0€% (0.3¢%) 1.9¢% 1.5¢%
For the quarter ended Decembel
31, 200¢€ $ 1,10523¢ $ 10,95« 3.96% 2.22% 2.94% (0.71%) 1.7%% 1.02%
For the quarter ended Septemb
30, 200¢€ $ 133953 $ 15,54 4.64% 2.62% 3.1%% (0.57%) 2.02% 1.45%
For the quarter ended June 30,
2008 $ 1,449,56° $ 20,02t 5.5%% 2.5% 2.99% (0.34%) 2.9%% 2.6(%

Net Interest Income

Our net interest income, which equals interestimedess interest expense, totaled $56.8 million%gh@ million for the quarters ended June 30, 2808 2008, and
$75.7 million and $24.1 million for the six montbsded June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Ounteest spread, which equals the yield on ourameassets for the period
less the average cost of funds for the period,4v43% and 0.65% for the quarters ended June 3® 208 2008 and 3.84% and 1.47% for the six montbea June 30, 2009
and 2008, respectively. We attribute the incréaset interest income and net interest spreati@aléecline in the interest rates at which we boruavds, the purchase of higher
yielding assets following our 2009 secondary offgs, and the termination of interest rate sw
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The table below shows our average assets held jnttgest earned on assets, yield on averageesitearning assets, average balance of repurchesenzgents, interest exper
average cost of funds, net interest income, andntextest rate spread for the quarter ended Jun2®®, March 31, 2009, the year ended Decembe2@®18, the quarter end
December 31, 2008, September 31, 2008 and Jurg9G@8,

Net Interest Income
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Yield on
Average Net
Average Interest Interest Average Average Net Interest
Earning Earned on Earning Debt Interest Cost of Interest Rate
Assets Helc Assets Assets Balance Expense Funds Income Spreac
For the quarter ended
June 30, 200 $ 3,812,89 $ 65,07 6.82% $ 1,386,53! $ 8,31: 24(% $ 56,76 4.4%%
For the quarter ended
March 31, 200¢ $ 1,739,76 $ 28,00 6.44% $ 1,038,461 $ 9,042 3.4&8% $ 18,96 2.9¢%
For the year ended
December 31, 200 $ 1,711,700 $ 102,09¢ 5.9¢% $ 1,304,87. $ 60,54« 464 $ 44,71 1.32%
For the quarter ended
December 31, 200 $ 1,621,200 $ 23,25¢ 5.74% $ 1,105,23' $ 10,954 3.96% $ 12,70: 1.7¢%
For the quarter ended
September 30, 20( $ 1,751,741 $ 23,41¢ 535% $ 1,339,53. $ 15,54 4.64% $ 7,91¢ 0.71%
For the quarter ended
June 30, 200 $ 191796 $ 29,63( 6.18% $ 1,449,566 $ 20,02t 55%% $ 9,92¢ 0.65%

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, we soletasgith a carrying value of $84.6 million whichsu#ted in a net gain of approximately $9.3 milliofor the
quarter ended June 30, 2008, there were no adest sa

Management Fee and General and Administrative Exges

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $6.0 million &8d million for the quarters ended June 30, 204892008, and $8.5 million and $4.5 million for tig month:
ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Timagement fee is based on stockholder’s equity laméhtrease in the management fee for the quartirdeJune 30, 2009
resulted from the increase in the Company’s stoltidre’ equity at the completion of its secondarfenhgs of common stock during the period.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses wér@ fillion and $1.2 million for the quarters endkohe 30, 2009 and 2008 and $3.1million and $3llfomifor
the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, riésggc G&A expenses increased during the pedaod to an increase in the Company'’s loan loss piavi

Total expenses as a percentage of average to&bassre 1.08% and 0.70% for the quarters endesl 02009 and 2008 and 1.03% and 0.84% for thmeiths
ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Tdredse in total expenses as a percentage of avetagassets is the result of an increase indaa loss provision recorded
and an increase in the investment management fhenat30, 2009.
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Currently, FIDAC has waived its right to requiretaay our pro rata portion of rent, telephonéitiess, office furniture, equipment, machinery aoiher office,
internal and overhead expenses of FIDAC and itleaéfs required for our operations.

The table below shows our total management fee€G8# expenses as compared to average total assé@vanage equity for the quarters ended June 3®,20
March 31, 2009, for the year ended December 318, 20@ quarters ended December 31, 2008, Septe3ob2008, and June 30, 2008.

Management Fee and G&A Expenses and Operating BgfRatios
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Total Total

Total Management Fee Management Fee
Management Fe¢ and G&A and G&A
and G&A Expenses/Avera; Expenses/Avera(

Expense: Total Assets Equity
For the quarter ended June 30, 2! $ 7,94¢ 1.08% 2.61%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 3,72 0.94% 3.51%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 14,027 0.85% 3.5(%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 3,91¢ 1.1% 4.7¢%
For the quarter ended September 30, Z $ 1,93¢ 0.4€% 2.4%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2! $ 3,38( 0.7(% 3.35%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $51.6 million and $33.9 millard $70.5 million for the quarters ended June 8092and June 30, 2008 and the six months ended3yr2®09,
respectively. Our net loss was $21.0 milliontfee six months ended June 30, 2008. The tablevshows our net interest income, gain (loss) oe shbssets, unrealized ga
(loss) on interest rate swaps, total expensespirdax, each as a percentage of average equitghamdturn on average equity for the quarter elddee 30, 2009, March 31,
2009, the year ended December 31, 2008, the quartlerd December 31, 2008, September 31, 2008 aed3y 2008. Our return on average equity decdefase 33.60% for
the quarter ended June 30, 2008 to 17.36% forubeter ended June 30, 2009 primarily due to therades of unrealized gains on interest mteps that were recorded in the 1

quarter of 2008.

Components of Return on Average Equity

(Ratios have been annualized)

Gain/(Loss) on

Sale of
Investments
and Other
Net Than- Unrealized
Interest Temporary Gain/(Loss) on Total
Income/ Impairments Interest Rate Expenses/ Income Return on
Average /Average Swaps/Average Average Tax/Average Average
Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
For the quarter ended June 30, 2009 19.0&4 3.1%% 0.0(% (2.67%) - 17.36%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 17.91% 3.42% 0.0(% (3.51%) - 17.82%
For the year ended December 31, 2 11.1%% (38.62%) 1.04% (3.5(%) - (29.9:%)
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 15.5(% - - (4.7¢%) - 10.72%
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 10.0%% (157.2¢%) 12.81% (2.4€%) (0.02%) (136.80)
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 9.84% 1.7%% 25.36% (3.35%) - 33.6(%

43




REIT Taxable Income Per Share
Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measurementsd GAAP financial measurements

As a REIT, we are required to distribute to ourrehalders substantially all of our REIT taxablergags in the form of dividends. Taxable earningsgi®are is a
meaningful financial measurement for investors emahagement in assessing our performance. A re@imil of REIT taxable income per share to GAAP EPB&sic) follows:

GAAP net income per share is the measure that & directly related to REIT taxable income per shaREIT taxable income per share is a @%AP measuremer
that adjusts GAAP net income per share for itentduebed from REIT taxable income. As a REIT, we r@guired to distribute to our shareholders sulistinall of our REIT
taxable income in the form of dividends. Sinceelates to the dividends we are required to declaecbelieve REIT taxable earnings per share iganmimgful financial
measurement for investors and management in asgessi performance. Items that are typically ideld in GAAP net income that are excluded from R&lable income are
unrealized gains and losses included in net incémsees on sales of investments to the extentekeged gains on sales of investments, and bookvéag amortization
adjustments.

A reconciliation of REIT taxable income per shasé3AAP EPS (basic) follows:

For the quarter For the year
ended ended Decembe
June 30, 200 31, 2008
GAAP income (loss) per sha $ 01C $ (2.90
Realized (gain) loss on sale of investme (0.02) 2.4k
Unrealized loss on interest rate sw - 0.07
Other-than-temporary credit impairments 0.01 -
REIT taxable income per share $ 0.0¢ $ 0.62

The computation of realized gains and losses paesh the quotient of realized gains and lossesates of investments and the weighted average euailshares
outstanding-basic and diluted as presented in thes@lidated Statements of Operations and Comprateleome.

The computation of unrealized gains and lossesitemast swaps per share is the quotient of unezhtimins and losses on interest rate swaps awaeiighted averac
number of shares outstanding-basic and dilutedesepted in the Consolidated Statements of Opesatind Comprehensive Income.

The computation of other-than-temporary credit impants per share is the quotient of other-thanptenary credit impairments and the weighted averageber of
shares outstanding-basic and diluted as presemtibe iConsolidated Statements of Operations andp@gmensive Income

The taxable earnings per share computation doeisclatle the impact of realized losses on saléswestments to the extent they exceed realizedsgairsales of
investments. This exclusion may not fully repregbe results of all operations during the period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, fund and maintain RMBS, mortgage loams a
other assets, pay dividends and other general éssimeeds. Our principal sources of capital and<ior additional investments primarily includereags from our

investments, borrowings under securitizations @nsercuritizations, repurchase agreements and fatla@icing facilities, and proceeds from equity offgs. We expect these
sources of financing will be sufficient to meet ahiort-term liquidity needs.
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We expect to continue to borrow funds in the fofmepurchase agreements and, subject to markeftaorg] other types of financing. The terms of thpurchase
transaction borrowings under our master repurchgseements generally conform to the terms in taedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishibe ISecurities Indust
and Financial Markets Association, or SIFMA, asgpayment, margin requirements and the segregatfiath securities we have initially sold under tie@urchase
transaction. In addition, each lender typicallguiees that we include supplemental terms and ¢mmdi to the standard master repurchase agreerigptcal supplemental
terms and conditions include changes to the margiimtenance requirements, required haircuts, anchpge price maintenance requirements, requirertteatsll controversies
related to the repurchase agreement be litigatedparticular jurisdiction and cross default prawis. These provisions will differ for each of denders and will not be
determined until we engage in a specific repurcl@sesaction.

For our short-term (one year or less) and long-tegmidity, which include investing and complianeith collateralization requirements under our rehase
agreements (if the pledged collateral decreasealire or in the event of margin calls created Bppyments of the pledged collateral), we also@elyhe cash flow from
investments, primarily monthly principal and intserpayments to be received on our RMBS and wholegage loans, cash flow from the sale of securdesvell as any
primary securities offerings authorized by our lobaf directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe sget will be sufficient to enable us to meet gudied short-term
(one year or less) liquidity requirements suchoafsihd our investment activities, pay fees undermanagement agreement, fund our distributionsackdolders and pay
general corporate expenses. However, a decliffeeindlue of our collateral or an increase in prepayt rates substantially above our expectationklerause a temporary
liquidity shortfall due to the timing of the necasg margin calls on the financing arrangementsthadctual receipt of the cash related to pringiyagidowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfy lmuidity requirements, we may have to sell debadditional equity securities in a common stofflering. If required, the sale
of RMBS or whole mortgage loans at prices lowenttieir carrying value would result in losses aadiuced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater thae gear) liquidity and capital resource requiremevitsbe subject to obtaining additional debt fimémg and equity
capital. Subject to our maintaining our qualificaitias a REIT as well as market conditions, we exjpease a number of sources to finance our invests) including repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizatiomroercial paper and term financing CDOs. Suchfiireg will depend on market conditions for capitibes and for the
investment of any proceeds. If we are unable tewemeplace or expand our sources of financingutnstantially similar terms, it may have an adveffect on our business and
results of operations. Upon liquidation, holder®of debt securities and shares of preferred stadkienders with respect to other borrowings veileive a distribution of our
available assets prior to the holders of our comstook.

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&tEsyl million and $27.5 million at June 30, 2009 &recember 31, 2008, respectively. Our cash asi ca
equivalents declined as we utilized cash balarwesgay short term repurchase agreements.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $24.4 million and $7.6 million for the qters ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 and $38.2 mélial $15.6
million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 20@8, respectively.

Our investing activities used net cash of $2.4dsilland $13.1 million for the quarters ended Jube2®09 and June 30, 2008 and $2.4 billion and Billian for the
six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, resphctivi@uring the quarter ended June 30, 2009 wieeti cash to purchase $2.6 billion in RMBS andahhivere offset by
proceeds from asset sales that provided approxiyn®dd.6 million as compared to the purchase ofgfMillion of residential mortgage loans offsetriegidential mortgage
loan sales that provided approximately $90.7 nrilfior the quarter ended June 30, 2008.
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Our financing activities provided net cash of $ilion and utilized $36.0 million for the quarteeaded June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008. Our fimgactivities
provided net cash of $2.4 billion and $1.1 billimn the six months ended June 30, 2009 and Jun20B®. We expect to continue to borrow funds inftren of repurchase
agreements as well as other types of financingofAkine 30, 2009, we had $123.5 million outstagdinder our repurchase agreement with Annaly esldized by our RMBS
with weighted average borrowing rates of 1.78% waedjhted average remaining maturities of 7 daylse RMBS pledged as collateral under the repurcagssement with
Annaly had an estimated fair value of $183.0 millat June 30, 2009. The interest rates of thercbpse agreement with Annaly are generally indéaetle one-month LIBOR
rate and re-price accordingly.

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the repurchase agresrfierRMBS had the following remaining maturities:

December 31,

June 30, 200 2008
(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ - $ =
1 to 30 day: 1,427,48. 562,11¢
30 to 59 day: 73,14¢ =
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 days - -
Total $ 1,500,63. $ 562,11¢

Increases in short-term interest rates could meggataffect the valuation of our mortgage-relates$ets, which could limit our borrowing ability @ause our lenders
to initiate margin calls. Amounts due upon matuafyur repurchase agreements will be funded piilgntirough the rollover/reissuance of repurchageeements and monthly
principal and interest payments received on ourtgagre-backed securities.

For our short-term (one year or less) and long-tégmdity, which includes investing and complianeih collateralization requirements under our repase
agreements (if the pledged collateral decreasealire or in the event of margin calls created Bppyments of the pledged collateral), we also@elyhe cash flow from
investments, primarily monthly principal and intserpayments to be received on our RMBS and wholegage loans, cash flow from the sale of securdesvell as any
primary securities offerings authorized by our lobaf directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe ose@swill be sufficient to enable us to meet aptitéd short-term
(one year or less) liquidity requirements suchoafsihd our investment activities, pay fees undermanagement agreement, fund our distributionsackéiolders and pay
general corporate expenses. However, an incragaepayment rates substantially above our expentatould cause a temporary liquidity shortfaleda the timing of the
necessary margin calls on the financing arrangesreemd the actual receipt of the cash related twipél paydowns. If our cash resources are atiamgy insufficient to satisfy
our liquidity requirements, we may have to selldstments or issue debt or additional equity seearih a common stock offering. If required, tiadesof RMBS or whole
mortgage loans at prices lower than their carryialgle would result in losses and reduced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater than gaar) liquidity and capital resource requirememitsbe subject to obtaining additional debt finargand equity
capital. Subject to our maintaining our qualificaitias a REIT, we expect to use a number of sotiocsance our investments, including repurchase@ments, warehouse
facilities, securitizations, commercial paper aet financing CDOs. Such financing will dependnoarket conditions for capital raises and for theestment of any proceeds.
If we are unable to renew, replace or expand ources of financing on substantially similar termsnay have an adverse effect on our businessests of operations. Upon
liquidation, holders of our debt securities, if aapd shares of preferred stock, if any, and lendéth respect to other borrowings will receiveistribution of our available
assets prior to the holders of our common stock.
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We are not required by our investment guidelinemi&intain any specific debt-to-equity ratio as vedidve the appropriate leverage for the particatsmets we are
financing depends on the credit quality and riskhofse assets. However, our master repurchaseragntés may require us to maintain certain debgtate ratios. At June 30,
2009, our total debt was approximately $1.9 billwinich represented a debt-to-equity ratio of 1.0:1.

Stockholders’ Equity

During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, we decldivédiends to common shareholders totaling $37 Ilianj or $0.08 per share, all of which were paidJuly 31,
2009. During the year ended December 31, 2008lestared dividends to common shareholders tot§i28)9 million, or $0.62 per share.

On April 15, 2009, we announced the sale of 235@@shares of common stock at $3.00 per sharestonated proceeds, less the underwriters’ discandt
offering expenses, of $674.8 million. Immediatfifowing the sale of these shares Annaly purch&ge855,752 shares at the same price per shahe asiblic offering, for
proceeds of approximately $74.9 million. In addition April 16, 2009 the underwriters exerciseddpgon to purchase up to an additional 35,2504t4res of common stock
to cover over-allotments for proceeds, less theenmdters’ discount, of approximately $101.3 mitlioThese sales were completed on April 21, 200%ll| we raised net
proceeds of approximately $850.9 in these offerings

On May 27, 2009, we announced the sale of 168,000s8ares of common stock at $3.22 per share fiona&egd proceeds, less the underwritelistount and offerin
expenses, of $519.3 million. Immediately followithg sale of these shares Annaly purchased 4,724}tdres at the same price per share as the pdfeling, for proceeds of
approximately $15.2 million. In addition, on June2009 the underwriters exercised the option telpase up to an additional 25,200,000 shares of amstock to cover over-
allotments for proceeds, less the underwritergalisit, of approximately $77.9 million. These salese completed on June 2, 2009. In all, we raisggroceeds of
approximately $612.4 million in these offerings.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarasmf June 30, 2009 or December 31, 2008.
Related Party Transactions
Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007, we entered into a manageaggaement with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC idited to receive a management fee and, in certain
circumstances, a termination fee and reimbursewofecgrtain expenses as described in the manageagegsgment. Such fees and expenses do not hadesiixedeterminable
payments. The management fee is payable quantealyears in an amount equal to 1.50% per annafoyutated quarterly, of our stockholders’ equity ¢kefined in the
management agreement). FIDAC uses the proceetisifsananagement fee in part to pay compensatids tfficers and employees who, notwithstandireg ttertain of them
also are our officers, receive no cash compensdireatly from us. The management fee will be i) but not below zero, by our proportionate sloagny CDO
management fees FIDAC receives in connection vaghQDOs in which we invest, based on the percerdagguity we hold in such CDOs.
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Financing Arrangements with Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBS repurchaseagent with Annaly. This agreement contains cuaty representations, warranties and covenantsicen
in such agreements. As of June 30, 2009, we had.$million outstanding under the agreement witheigghted average borrowing rate of 1.78%.

Restricted Stock Grants

During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, 32,22%stadrestricted stock we had awarded to our Margmgenployees vested and 928 shares were forfeited
cancelled. We did not grant any incentive awargting the quarter ended June 30, 2009.

At June 30, 2009 there are approximately 1.1 nmillimvested shares of restricted stock issued tdogmexs of FIDAC. For the quarter ended June 30920
compensation expense less general and administiaists associated with the amortization of theviaiue of the restricted stock totaled $111,176.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual gdtions at June 30, 2009.

(dollars in thousand:

Greater
Than or
One to Three to Equal to
Within One Three Five Five
Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Years Total
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,500,63. $ = = -8 1,500,63:
Securitized dek 40,34¢ 74,81¢ 38,33t 309,63¢ 463,13¢
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreements(1) 384 - - - 384
Interest expense on securitized debt(1) 24,45¢ 42,531 35,081 129,80: 231,87¢
Total $ 156581 $ 117,34¢  $ 73,42: $ 439,44. $ 2,196,02!

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeatfaJune 30, 2009.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolida&etities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance origpecrpose
entities, which would have been established forpilmose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangets or other contractually narrow or limited pwses. Further, we have not
guaranteed any obligations of unconsolidated estitior do we have any commitment or intent to g®Wiunding to any such entities. As such, we atematerially exposed to
any market, credit, liquidity or financing risk theould arise if we had engaged in such relatiqrshi

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxatdeme, determined without regard to the dedudiaon
dividends paid and excluding any net capital gaivie.intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, whetbetJ.S. federal income
tax purposes or otherwise, which would only be maitiof available cash to the extent permitted uiode warehouse and repurchase facilities, we fimsstmeet both our
operating requirements and scheduled debt serviceipwarehouse lines and other debt payable.
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Capital Resources
At June 30, 2009, we had no material commitmentsdpital expenditures.
Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities areengst rate sensitive in nature. As a result, istenaes and other factors influence our perforradacmore so than does
inflation. Changes in interest rates do not negégsarrelate with inflation rates or changesiflation rates. Our consolidated financial statetaeme prepared in accordance
with GAAP and our distributions will be determinky our board of directors consistent with our oélign to distribute to our stockholders at leat9ff our REIT taxable
income on an annual basis in order to maintainrREIT qualification; in each case, our activitiesldralance sheet are measured with reference tribatcost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary components of our market risk are egldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésik, r market value risk and real estate risk. Whitedo not seek to
avoid risk completely, we believe the risk can banfified from historical experience and we seeédtively manage that risk, to earn sufficient cemgation to justify taking
those risks and to maintain capital levels conststéth the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetewn which are rated below “AAA”. The credit kselated to
these investments pertains to the ability and mghiess of the borrowers to pay, which is assesskedebcredit is granted or renewed and periodiaaiyewed throughout the
loan or security term. We believe that residuahloeedit quality is primarily determined by the awers’ credit profiles and loan characteristidA&C uses a comprehensive
credit review process. FIDAC's analysis of loandudes borrower profiles, as well as valuation apgraisal data. FIDAC uses compensating factons asdiquid assets, low
loan to value ratios and job stability in evalugtlnpans. FIDAC's resources include a proprietasytiplio management system, as well as third psofyjware systems. FIDAC
utilizes a third party due diligence firm to perfoan independent underwriting review to insure cliempe with existing guidelines. FIDAC selects Isdar review predicated
on risk-based criteria such as loan-to-value, beerts credit score(s) and loan size. FIDAC alsasoutces underwriting services to review higher liglns, either due to
borrower credit profiles or collateral valuatiosugs. In addition to statistical sampling techngjl@DAC creates adverse credit and valuation sasppthich we individually
review. FIDAC rejects loans that fail to conformdor standards. FIDAC accepts only those loanslwirieet our underwriting criteria. Once we own anldaDAC's
surveillance process includes ongoing analysisuiiur proprietary data warehouse and services.fikdditionally, the non-Agency RMBS and other ABBich we acquire
for our portfolio are reviewed by FIDAC to ensuhat they satisfy our risk based criteria. FIDAGgiew of non-Agency RMBS and other ABS includesazitig its proprietary
portfolio management system. FIDAC's review of nbgency RMBS and other ABS is based on quantitaive qualitative analysis of the risk-adjusted mesuwn non-Agency
RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many ¢ast including governmental monetary and tax peticdomestic and international economic and palitic
considerations and other factors beyond our cantvel are subject to interest rate risk in connectiith our investments and our related debt obilkgest, which are generally
repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities, sieation, commercial paper and term financing CDOsr repurchase agreements and warehouse facitiagsbe of limited
duration that are periodically refinanced at currearket rates. We intend to mitigate this rislotigh utilization of derivative contracts, primarifyterest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedifces between the income from our investmerdan borrowing costs. Most of our warehouse faesiand
repurchase agreements provide financing basedloatiang rate of interest calculated on a fixedespt over LIBOR. The fixed spread varies dependmthe type of underlying
asset which collateralizes the financing. Accordlinthe portion of our portfolio which consists ftdating interest rate assets will be match-fundglizing our expected sources
of short-term financing, while our fixed intereate assets will not be match-funded. During permfd$sing interest rates, the borrowing costs esded with our investments
tend to increase while the income earned on oedfirterest rate investments may remain substntinthanged. This will result in a narrowing oéthet interest spread
between the related assets and borrowings and wesyresult in losses. Further, during this portdtthe interest rate and credit cycles, defaultddcrease and result in
credit losses to us, which could adversely affectliguidity and operating results. Such delinquesor defaults could also have an adverse effeth® spread between interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitiesiditeg techniques are partly based on assumed lef/plepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid adjbit-rate mortgage loans
and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or faster timsumed, the life of the mortgage loans and RMBISheilonger or shorter, which would reduce theefifveness of any
hedging strategies we may use and may cause lossagh transactions. Hedging strategies involtilieguse of derivative securities are highly com@led may produce
volatile returns.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is the@ffanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the reskitte fair value of
our assets will increase or decrease at differesrthan that of our liabilities, including oudigéng instruments. We primarily assess our intenast risk by estimating the
duration of our assets and the duration of ouilitas. Duration essentially measures the markigepvolatility of financial instruments as inteteates change. We generally
calculate duration using various financial modeld empirical data. Different models and methodaegian produce different duration numbers for #messecurities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change beyond 100 basigpfiom current
levels. Therefore, the volatility in the fair valoéour assets could increase significantly wheergst rates change beyond 100 basis points. liti@ddther factors impact the
fair value of our interest rate-sensitive investtseand hedging instruments, such as the shape gid¢ld curve, market expectations as to futurergt rate changes and other
market conditions. Accordingly, in the event of ohas in actual interest rates, the change in theddue of our assets would likely differ from trehown above and such
difference might be material and adverse to owldtolders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIMIBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which trdedging mortgages are typically subject to peroaid
lifetime interest rate caps and floors, which lithie amount by which the security’s interest yigldy change during any given period. However, ourdwing costs pursuant to
our financing agreements will not be subject toilsinrestrictions. Therefore, in a period of incsee interest rates, interest rate costs on ouoldngs could increase without
limitation by caps, while the interest-rate yietts our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS dvefiiectively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we
acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basadamgages which are fully indexed. In addition, thertgages or the underlying mortgages in an RMBS$ be subject to
periodic payment caps that result in some portiothe interest being deferred and added to thecjath outstanding. This could result in our receipless cash income on our
adjustable-rate mortgages or RMBS than we needdierdo pay the interest cost on our related boimgs: These factors could lower our net interesbine or cause a net loss
during periods of rising interest rates, which wbb&rm our financial condition, cash flows and tesaf operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh&ybrid adjustable-rate mortgages and RMBS withrdwings that, after the effect of hedging, haveiiest rates
based on indices and re-pricing terms similar tn,df somewhat shorter maturities than, the intenae indices and re-pricing terms of the mortgasyed RMBS. Thus, in most
cases the interest rate indices and re-pricinggerfour mortgage assets and our funding sourdésetibe identical, thereby creating an interesé mismatch between assets
and liabilities. Therefore, our cost of funds wolikely rise or fall more quickly than would ourreéngs rate on assets. During periods of changiterést rates, such interest |
mismatches could negatively impact our financialditon, cash flows and results of operations. Tibgate interest rate mismatches, we may utilizetthdging strategies
discussed above. Our analysis of risks is basdedlDAC’s experience, estimates, models and assumptiorseTdnalyses rely on models which utilize estimatésir value an
interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic condiimr implementation of investment decisions byroanagement may produce results that differ sicgnifily from the estimates
and assumptions used in our models and the prdjeeseilts shown in this Form 10-Q.
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Our profitability and the value of our portfolilm@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselytgteduring any period as a result of changing@sterates. The
following table quantifies the potential changesiét interest income, portfolio value should inggmates go up or down 25, 50, and 75 basis passjming the yield curves of
the rate shocks will be parallel to each othertivedcurrent yield curve. All changes in income antlie are measured as percentage changes frqonafleeted net interest
income and portfolio value at the base interest saenario. The base interest rate scenario assnteeest rates at June 30, 2009 and various &stsmegarding prepayment i
all activities are made at each level of rate shokktual results could differ significantly frorhése estimates.

Projected Percentage Change Projected Percentage Change

in in
Change in Interest Ra Net Interest Incom Portfolio Value
-75 Basis Point 6.8E% (14.2t%)
-50 Basis Point 5.15% (15.2%%)
-25 Basis Point 3.44% (16.3(%)
Base Interest Ra - -
+25 Basis Point (0.97%) (18.3(%)
+50 Basis Point (1.58%) (19.3(%)
+75 Basis Point (2.1<%) (20.3(%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums paid on such investments wiirbertized against interest income. In generaiparease in
prepayment rates will accelerate the amortizatiogpuochase premiums, thereby reducing the inténesime earned on the investments. Conversely, digsamn such
investments are accreted into interest incomeefrecal, an increase in prepayment rates will acatdehe accretion of purchase discounts, themdrgasing the interest income
earned on the investments.

Extension Risk

FIDAC computes the projected weighted-averagedifeur investments based on assumptions regarbigate at which the borrowers will prepay the ulyileg
mortgages. In general, when fixed-rate or hybrigistdble-rate mortgage loans or RMBS are acquiréu orrowings, we may, but are not required tdeeimto an interest rate
swap agreement or other hedging instrument that&fely fixes our borrowing costs for a periodsgdo the anticipated average life of the fixedirtion of the related
assets. This strategy is designed to protect us figing interest rates because the borrowing @rstdixed for the duration of the fixed-rate pontiof the related
assets. However, if prepayment rates decreaseising interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could rateeyond the term of the swap
agreement or other hedging instrument. This coaiceta negative impact on our results from operatias borrowing costs would no longer be fixedrafie end of the hedging
instrument while the income earned on the hybridstedble-rate assets would remain fixed. This sithemay also cause the market value of our hyadidistable-rate assets to
decline, with little or no offsetting gain from thelated hedging transactions. In extreme situatiare may be forced to sell assets to maintainwatediquidity, which could
cause us to incur losses.
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Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind &sses excluded from earnings and reported ierabmprehensive
income pursuant to SFAS 115. The estimated fairevaf these securities fluctuates primarily duehtanges in interest rates, prepayment speeds, hiigpkielity, credit quality,
and other factors. Generally, in a rising interag¢ environment, the estimated fair value ofétsscurities would be expected to decrease; coglyeis a decreasing interest
rate environment, the estimated fair value of treesrurities would be expected to increase. As etardlatility increases or liquidity decreases, fie value of our investments
may be adversely impacted. If we are unable tdikeabtain independent pricing to validate ourirestted fair value of securities in the portfolibetfair value gains or losses
recorded in other comprehensive income may be adieaffected.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayrealproperty directly in the future. Residenpabperty values are subject to volatility and mayalffected
adversely by a number of factors, including, butlmoited to, national, regional and local econorménditions (which may be adversely affected bystdy slowdowns and
other factors); local real estate conditions (sa€lan oversupply of housing); changes or continueaikness in specific industry segments; constra}iality, age and design;
demographic factors; and retroactive changes talibgior similar codes. In addition, decreasesropprty values reduce the value of the collatendl the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whigbld also cause us to suffer losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage loans, RMB&d other
assets and related debt against the effects ofrimagrest rate changes. We generally seek to neaoagrisk by:

« monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andioancings;
« attempting to structure our financing agreementsaiee a range of different maturities, terms, aipatibns and interest rate adjustment periods;
« using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, opgiaraps, floors and forward sales to adjust trera@st rate sensitivity of our investments and aurdwings;

« using securitization financing to lower averaget@igunds relative to shoterm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe benefit of attractive terms for
extended period of time in contrast to short teimaricing and maturity dates of the investmentsuidet! in the securitization; ai

« actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theesteate indices, interest rate adjustment periadd, gross reset margins of our investments andntbeest rat
indices and adjustment periods of our financii

Our efforts to manage our assets aimdlitias are concerned with the timing and magnretud the repricing of assets and liabilities. We attempt émtcol risks associate
with interest rate movements. Methods for evahgainterest rate risk include an analysis of otenest rate sensitivity “gap”, which is the difface between interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities maturingegpricing within a given time period. A gap snsidered positive when the amount of interestsatesitive assets exceeds the
amount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities. &pgs considered negative when the amount of isteege sensitive liabilities exceeds intenege sensitive assets. During a pe
of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tenadversely affect net interest income, whileaifive gap would tend to result in an increaseehinterest income. During a
period of falling interest rates, a negative gaplddend to result in an increase in net intenesbine, while a positive gap would tend to affedtineerest income
adversely. Because different types of assetsiahilities with the same or similar maturities mapact differently to changes in overall market saie conditions, changes in
interest rates may affect net interest income pedjt or negatively even if an institution were femtly matched in each maturity category.
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The following table sets forth the estimated mayuor re-pricing of our interest-earning assets emerest-bearing liabilities at June 30, 2009.e Bimounts of assets
and liabilities shown within a particular period neeletermined in accordance with the contractuaideof the assets and liabilities, except adjustedte loans, and securities
included in the period in which their interest sage first scheduled to adjust and not in theoglein which they mature and does include the efféthe interest rate swaps. T
interest rate sensitivity of our assets and li&ibgiin the table could vary substantially if basedactual prepayment experience.

Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than
Months 3-12 Months Years 3 Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Rate sensitive asse $ 3,488,35. $ 32,52 $ 1,055,16: $ 727,197 $ 5,303,23I
Cash equivalents 13,12: - - - 13,121
Total rate sensitive assets 3,501,47. 32,520 1,055,16: 727,19 5,316,35
Rate sensitive liabilities, with the effect
of swaps 1,500,63. - - 463,13t 1,963,76°
Interest rate sensitivity gap $ 2,000,84. $ 32,52 $ 1,055,16: $ 264,06. $ 3,352,591
Cumulative rate sensitivity gap $ 2,000,84. $ 2,033,36/  $ 3,088,52 $ 3,352,591
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap as
a percentage of total rate-sensitive
assets 38% 38% 58% 63%

Our analysis of risks is based on FIDAC's expergrastimates, models and assumptions. These asably on models which utilize estimates of failue and
interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic coratig or implementation of investment decisions AT may produce results that differ significanttprh the estimates and
assumptions used in our models and the projectdtseshown in the above tables and in this repbiese analyses contain certain forwkmking statements and are subjec
the safe harbor statement set forth under the hgatffpecial Note Regarding Forward-Looking Stateteg

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffior CEO, and Chief Financial Officer, or CFOyiesved and evaluated the effectiveness of the desigl
operation of our disclosure controls and proced(asslefined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) ofSkeurities Exchange Act) as of the end of theopecbvered by this
quarterly report. Based on that review and evalnathe CEO and CFO have concluded that our cudisslosure controls and procedures, as designédaplemented, (1)
were effective in ensuring that information regagithe Company and its subsidiaries is made knovaut management, including our CEO and CFO, asoppiate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure @)dvere effective in providing reasonable assueahat information the Company must disclose ipégodic reports under
the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processedmarized and reported within the time periogsgribed by the SEC’s rules and forms.
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Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes in our “internal contrer financial reporting” (as defined in Rule 1B&{) under the Securities Exchange Act) that o@miduring the
period covered by this quarterly report that hatenally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, our internal control over financiaporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Iltem 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in variousimls and legal actions arising in the ordinary sewf business. In the opinion of management, ltireate
disposition of these matters will not have a matexdverse effect on our consolidated financidkestents.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth Imst report, you should carefully consider the fesiiscussed in Part |, "ltem 1A. Risk Factorsbim Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 260&h could materially affect our business, finahciondition or future results. The information ggated below updates
and should be read in conjunction with the riskdeg and information disclosed in that Form 10-K.

Continued adverse developments in the broader restiél mortgage market may adversely affect theueabf the assets in which we invest.

In 2008 and so far in 2009, the residential morégamgirket in the United States has experiencedietyanf difficulties and changed economic condigpmcluding
defaults, credit losses and liquidity concernst&earcommercial banks, investment banks and inseraompanies have announced extensive losses kpos@re to the
residential mortgage market. These losses haveeddinancial industry capital, leading to redutigdidity for some institutions. These factors hawgpacted investor
perception of the risk associated with RMBS, resiidé mortgage loans, real estate-related secsidtiel various other asset classes in which wetinkssa result, values for
RMBS, residential mortgage loans, real estategdlaecurities and various other asset classesighwile invest have experienced a certain amounblatility. Further
increased volatility and deterioration in the breacksidential mortgage and RMBS markets may aéleesfect the performance and market value ofiouestments.

Any decline in the value of our investments, orgeéred market uncertainty about their value, wdikiely make it difficult for us to obtain financingn favorable
terms or at all, or maintain our compliance withits of any financing arrangements already in pldbe. RMBS in which we invest are classified for@atting purposes as
available-for-sale. All assets classified as atdédor-sale are reported at fair value with uniisal gains antbsses excluded from earnings and reported asaaaepomponel
of stockholders’ equity. As a result, a declinddin values may reduce the book value of our asédseover, if the decline in fair value of an dahie-for-sale security is other-
than-temporarily impaired, such decline will redezenings. If market conditions result in a decliméhe fair value of our RMBS, our financial pasit and results of operations
could be adversely affected.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advetyg affect our business.

We may invest in securities or other instrumenés #gre not liquid. It may be difficult or imposs#tio obtain third party pricing on the investmentspurchase.
Turbulent market conditions, such as those curyentéffect, could significantly and negatively iangd the liquidity of our assets. llliquid investnigtypically experience great
price volatility as a ready market does not exigt ean be more difficult to value. In addition, idating third party pricing for illiquid investmesitmay be more subjective than
more liquid investments. The illiquidity of our iastments may make it difficult for us to sell sulthestments if the need or desire arises. In aufdiif we are required to
liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quicklywe may realize significantly less than the vatieshich we have previously recorded our investsiefs a result, our ability to
vary our portfolio in response to changes in ecan@nd other conditions may be relatively limitedyich could adversely affect our results of operadiand financial conditio
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Iltem 4. SUBMISSIGF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

(a) The annual meeting of stockholders of Chimera Itnaest Corporation was held on May 29, 20

(b) All Class Il director nominees were elect

Director Votes Fot Votes Withhelc
Matthew Lambias: 166,452,14: 4,350,15C
Paul Keenai 168,641,67: 2,160,621

The continuing directors of the Company are Markakhs, Jeremy Diamond, and Paul Donlin.

(c) In addition to the election of the Class Il dirgstahe ratification of the appointment of Deloi&eTouche LLP as our independent registered pudtioountini

firm for 2009 was approve:

Proposals and Vote Tabulatiol

\otes Cas
For Against Abstain
Ratification of the
appointment of
independent registered
public accounting firm 170,650,016 106,734 45,542

for 2009
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibits:
The exhibits required by this item are set forthttoa Exhibit Index attached hereto
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

Number

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chimeva$itment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to For-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by referenct

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corpiora (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s RepamtForm 8-5 filed on May 28,
2009 and incorporated herein by referer

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investmemp@ation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the CompaniRsgistration Statement on
Amendment No. 2 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incorporéteetin by reference

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimera Inwesit Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Compa Registration Statement
on Amendment No. 1 to Forn-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdraggein by referenct

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®éficer and President of the Registrant, pursuarection 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, Chief Fine®©fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to Sect8f}2 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®éficer and President of the Registrant, pursuarit8 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, Chief Fine©fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.SSection 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be signedsobehalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the aftiNew York, State of New York.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: _/s/ Matthew Lambiase
Matthew Lambiase
Chief Executive Officer and President
August 10, 2009

By: /s/ A. Alexandra Denahan
A. Alexandra Denahan
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
August 10, 2009
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly reémor Form 10-Q of Chimera Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgit&e a material fact necessary to make the statisrmade,
in light of the circumstances under which suchestegnts were made, not misleading with respectegéniod covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$,aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as defined in Exgghan
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcgarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 18d(f) for the registrar
and have

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureawsed such disclosure controls and procedurkee ttesigned under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgiseant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepare

b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahogporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegpttie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principle

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registamtisclosure controls and procedures and presentdiais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmost recel
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdiidely to
materially affect, the registre’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial reporting, to the
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regis’s ability to record, process, summarize and refraahcial information; an
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b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrand’ interna
control over financial reporting

Date: August 10, 2009

s/ Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:

1.

2.

5.

I have reviewed this quarterly reémor Form 10-Q of Chimera Investment Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omdtéde a material fact necessary to make the staism
made, in light of the circumstances under whichhsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$,aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as defined in Exgghan
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcgarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 18d(f) for the registrar
and have

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureawsed such disclosure controls and procedurkee ttesigned under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgiseant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepare

b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpg;, or caused such internal control over finahcggporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegpttie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principle

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registamtisclosure controls and procedures and presentdiais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmost recel
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdiidely to
materially affect, the registre’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial reporting, to the
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal contralerofinancial reporting which are reason:
likely to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refraahcial information; an
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b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrang’internal control o
financial reporting

Date: August 10, 2009

/sl _A. Alexandra Denahan

A. Alexandra Denahan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
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Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended March 31, 2009 to be filethwi

Securities and Exchange Commission on or aboulates hereof (the “Report”), Matthew Lambiase, President, and Chief Execufi¥féicer of the Company, certify, pursuan
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18.0. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2.

The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiabi@n and results of operations of the Companthatdates of, and for
the periods covered by, the Repi

It is not intended that this statement be deemémbtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/sl Matthew Lambiase
Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President
August 10, 2009
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Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended March 31, 2009 to be filethwi
Securities and Exchange Commission on or abouddbehereof (the “Report”), A. Alexandra Denahan, Chief Financial Officeda®ecretary of the Company, certify, pursi
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@U1S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiabi@n and results of operations of the Companthatdates of, and for
the periods covered by, the Repi

It is not intended that this statement be deemémbtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/sl A. Alexandra Denahan
A. Alexandra Denahan
Chief Financial Officer
August 10, 2009
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